


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid

market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the

Company’s website at www.gca.com.hk.
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AREH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to present
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the

year ended 31 March 2013.

PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group recorded turnover of HK$96.2 million,
representing a 40.8% increase comparing with the HK$68.3 million in
2012. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$26.9 million,
up 161.2% over the HK$10.3 million last year. Basic earnings per share was

HK5.39 cents, versus HK2.15 cents in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the world was still under threat of economic
recession. However, our overall services income increased during the year
as compared to last year owing to our successful business expansion since

listing.

Our services are broadly categorised into two main sectors: (i) asset advisory

services and asset appraisal; and (ii) corporate services and consultancy.

Asset advisory services and asset appraisal are the core business of the
Group, which typically involves provision of independent valuation services
to a number of listed groups to meet market, regulatory and fiduciary
requirements, sourcing and identifying potential investment opportunities or
investors, undertaking due diligence and evaluation on the underlying assets

and provision of procedural and strategic business advices.

Asset advisory services income is mainly success-based and project based
nature. During the year, asset advisory services income was approximately
HK$25.1 million, marking an increase of approximately 10.6% as compared
to last year. Asset appraisal services income increased to approximately
HK$38.6 million, or increased by approximately 43.4% in 2013 as compared
with last year mainly due to an increase in our client base. Consequently, our
revenue from asset advisory services and asset appraisal was approximately
HK$63.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 28.4% as

compared to last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

The corporate services and consultancy segment mainly focuses on provision
of advice to corporations in areas such as corporate governance, internal
control, enterprise risk management and other operational aspects as
well as provision of back office administration, which includes company
secretarial services, human resources management and administrative
services, accounting and tax services, etc. Owing to our growing client
base and diversifying income source, revenue generated from this segment
amounted to approximately HK$32.5 million in 2013, marking an increase of

approximately 73.8% as compared to last year.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the momentum for European and US economic recovery is
yet to be restored and China also announced a GDP growth target lower
than before; implying challenges to our business. However, we remain
cautiously optimistic with respect to the steady demand for professional
commercial services in Greater China. As companies in the region, especially
in China, grow in corporate size and operational complexity and geographical
diversification, the need for a leading professional advisor on asset value,
procedures and regulations, as well as investment matching is expected to
remain there. Based on our existing competitive advantages and market
position in our core business segments, the continuing increase in and
diversification of our client base and income source through horizontal
acquisitions, our experienced professional teams and provision of convenient
one-stop professional services, we are confident to confront such challenges.
Furthermore, based on our recent business expansion in Europe and Middle-
East, specifically in London and Dubai, we believe our client base and
income source would be further diversified and increased. We will continue
to capture market opportunities and enhance the quality and scope of our

services in order to deliver sustainable growth in returns to our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETR®E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the Board, our business
partners, all of our management and staff members, whose hard work and
support have made me confident that the Company is well-positioned to
sustain its robust development. The journey may be tough, but with the
unwavering dedication of our Board, management and staff, we are set to

grow stronger every step we take.

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately
HK$96.2 million (2012: approximately HK$68.3 million), representing an
increase of approximately 40.8% from that of 2012. The increase in the
Group's revenue during the year was mainly attributable to successful

business expansion as described in the “Business Review"” section.

The Group's cost of services mainly consists of direct labour cost and sub-
contracting charges. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group's
direct labour cost and sub-contracting charges were approximately
HK$13.9 million and HK$11.9 million respectively (2012: approximately
HK$12.8 million and HK$5.5 million respectively), representing an increase
of approximately 8.6% and 116.4% respectively from that of 2012. The
increase in sub-contracting charges was primarily due to more engagements

which required professional services provided by independent third-parties.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2013
was approximately HK$36.2 million (2012: approximately HK$37.4 million),
representing a slight decrease of approximately 3.2% from that of 2012. The
decrease in the Group's administrative expenses during the year was mainly

due to decrease in share-based payments.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

Accordingly, the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$26.9 million (2012:
approximately HK$10.3 million), representing an increase of approximately

161.2% from that of 2012.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group's businesses is in Hong Kong and is denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, and United States dollars. The Group is of
the opinion that its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is limited. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors closely foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$19.5 million (31 March 2012: approximately HK$37.1
million). As at 31 March 2013, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$91.3 million (31 March 2012: approximately HK$70.8
million). Current ratio as at 31 March 2013 was 6.0 (31 March 2012: 6.5).

The Group's operations and investments are financed principally by revenues
generated from business operations and available bank balances. As at 31
March 2013, the Group had no borrowing and a zero gearing ratio (31
March 2012: Nil), which is defined as net debt (total borrowings net of cash

and bank balances) over total equity, is resulted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$0.3 million (2012:

HK$1.5 million) for acquisition of plant and equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2012: Nil).

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s bank deposits in the amount of
approximately HK$1.0 million (31 March 2012: HK$1.0 million) were
pledged to secure banking facilities of HK$2.3 million granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (31 March 2012: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed 62 (31 March 2012: 66) full-time
employees including management and administrative staff. The employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
both individual's and Company’s performance, professional and working
experience and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards. The

Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate success.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
PLACING

The acquisition of shares of TodayIR Holdings Limited (“TodaylR") together
with its warrants (“GPS Warrant”) was funded by the net proceeds from the
listing and since the acquisition was only introduced to the Group after the
listing, it was not foreseeable at the time the business plan was formulated
and specifically disclosed in the prospectus but rather included as a part of the
subsequent business development plan. Consequently, the intended use of
listing proceeds at the time of listing did not provide any specific allocation for
the acquisition consideration. However, given the benefits of the acquisition,
we believe that the update to the intended use of net listing proceeds is

justified. The updated intended use of net listing proceeds is set out below:

AAF 2 EESE B %IETE
g

U 8 TodayIR Holdings Limited ([ TodaylR | ) A%
R ERBEE ([GPSRIAEE ) MES TN
RS RIERERN  ARAEER ETHE
FAEBETRIBUBHME  IHIRTEB5
BRI ARTER BIZM S TARRBREREZANE
STERE  RIERHBEBERAEIN—I
o[t R LT E R A LT ATS RUIE R E A
BHRTESRERNEONEIERFEES A
- ERRBERENEE  AEEREEN
M RIEFENR TR EEE EEH
B EMETSRIEFENRTERRHINT

o

D

Before completion After completion
of the acquisition of the acquisition
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
Uy B8 52 A AT Wy B 52 B 2
(B&%ET) (B&%T)
Business development EER
—in asset appraisal and corporate  — & E Tl KRG
service 27.95 17.78
—in asset advisory services —EERRERE 28.25 17.97
—in corporate consultancy — B ARB
business 15.30 9.73
— the acquisition of shares and — U B& TodayIRZ B9 &

GPS warrants of TodayIR GPSTR I 1 & - 71.50 26.02 71.50
Improvement of public awareness  H2Ft A R R 1.00 1.00
Human resources deployment ANERFE 5.50 5.50
Total #Et 78.00 78.00

The source of funding for the exercise of the GPS Warrant will be determined

by the Directors at the time of the exercise of the GPS Warrant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W N DA

During the period from 1 October 2012 to 31 March 2013 (the “Review

Period”), the net proceeds from the Company’s placing had been applied as

2012910818 £201343H31H 2 818
([EEEHRE]) - NARIBEE FEMSFURFE

follows: ERARUTHS:
Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the
prospectus
and updated
intended use
of proceeds Actual use
as stated above of proceeds
during the during the
review period review period
HK$ million HK$ million
BREERT
RS RER
EIREH
HEtEIAER
LR EMS FRBRER
RIEABRN B REE A
BHER BRAS
AEET BAEBTT
Business development XiGER
—in asset appraisal and corporate services —BEMNE R ERS 20.87 8.29
Improvement of public awareness RARNBRRHE 0.20 0.03
Human resources deployment AN EIRFAE 1.20 0.55
Note: B3 -

The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated in the prospectus
were based on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the prospectus. The proceeds were applied in
accordance with the actual development of the market. The remaining proceeds
as at 31 March 2013 had been placed as interest bearing deposits in licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 19
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R DA

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ENEEEEBEREREENLLE
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the prospectus ~ REIFAHIRE IR ERMEAMNELBZEER

and the actual business progress during the Review Period is set out below: EBERZEBROWHNAT

Business objectives for Actual business progress for the Review Period

the Review Period

REEABNEKBE REEHBNEREBEE
— Business development —  During the year, we entered into a series of contractual arrangements to purchase a

30% equity interests in a private entity incorporated in the PRC, an appraisal company
which provides appraisal services in the PRC.
—¥BERER - FAAREEFZ-RNEHORHFUBE —HFGE AR (R BEEMKL 2 L&
158 R B IRTS ) Z30% A4 -

i

\r

—  During the year, we incorporated a jointly controlled entity in Hong Kong. The entity
holds a 100% equity interests in a private entity incorporated in the PRC, which carries
out corporate services and consultancy business in the PRC.

- FAAREEREBZMA —FHRZEGIER ZERSE —HR MK
T2 AVEERE (PP BN RS E RS MR ER) Z100%A 5% o

— Improvement of public awareness  We invested resources in marketing activities to enhance our public awareness, including
organisation of professional seminars and publication of newsletters and periodicals.

—RADNRRH FEEERMERETHSHERRY URALFUENEENRE BEENHFEN
g R kAR K BT

— Human resources deployment We recruited additional professional staff to expand our services in Hong Kong and China.
— AN ERFR AEBEHBRIERETIUNBEAEBEEE LT EZ RS-
13 BEHEXRBEBERL A

2013 F



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, aged 52, is one of the founding directors of the Group
and was appointed as the managing director and an executive director of
the Company in December 2010. He is the member of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the executive committee; the
compliance officer; and the director of certain companies of the Group. He is
responsible for overall management and development including frontline co-
ordination with clients, organisations as well as formulation of development
strategy of the Group. Professionally, Mr. Ip is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor,
a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) under the Surveyors
Registration Ordinance and a Registered Business Valuer of the Hong Kong
Business Valuation Forum. He is now serving as a member of the Board of
Asian Valuation Professional Group of the Royal Institution of Chartered

Surveyors.

In addition, Mr. Ip was appointed as a committee member of the People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Harbin, the PRC and was elected as a
vice president of the Professional Managers Association of Guangdong in the
second half of 2011 after having received the Outstanding Entrepreneurship
Award from the Enterprise Asia, a non-governmental organisation for

entrepreneurship in mid-2011.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, aged 53, was appointed by the
Company as the chairman and an independent non-executive director in
May 2011. He is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the Company.
He received his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Studies from the
University of Bradford in England and his Master of Science degree in
Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Au-Yang was appointed as the chief financial officer of Sateri
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) on 1 January
2013. Also, he is a director of AsiaSoft Company Limited which is the holding
company of a group with businesses in different sectors of the software
industry. Prior to joining AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang spent
more than 20 years in the financial services sector in the Asia Pacific region.
He joined the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation group (the
"HSBC Group”) in 1985 and became a co-head of Investment Banking, Asia
Pacific of the HSBC Group in 2001. During his employment with the HSBC
Group from 1985 to 2003, Mr. Au-Yang worked on various equity capital
fund-raising exercises and merger and acquisition projects in the Asia Pacific
region. He was an executive director and the chief operating officer of The
Securities and Futures Commission ("SFC”) during the period from 2003
to 2006. In late 2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in
charge of the corporate finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is currently
an independent non-executive director of Telefield International (Holdings)
Limited, the shares of which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Chi Keung, aged 56, was appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wu has more than 30 years
experience in auditing and financial advisory services. Mr. Wu was a partner
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until he retired in December 2008. Mr. Wu is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wu graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1980 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy.

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of China Renji
Medical Group Limited, Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited, China Medical
System Holdings Limited and Jinchuan Group International Resources Co.
Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu was also
an independent non-executive director of JF Household Furnishings Limited
which is listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wan Kam To, aged 60, was appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Wan has over 30 years of experience
in auditing and advisory services. He joined PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong in 1975 and served as a partner of the firm from 1992 until retirement
in 2008. Mr. Wan is a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant and is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Wan graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong

Polytechnic University) in 1975 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy.

Mr. Wan is currently an independent director of Mindray Medical
International Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
USA) and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (@ company listed on the NASDAQ), and
the chairman of their audit committees. Mr. Wan is also an independent non-
executive director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange and
chairman/member of their audit committees, namely, China Resources Land
Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited, Fairwood Holdings Limited,
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited
and Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wan also served briefly
as an independent non-executive director of Real Gold Mining Limited in

2011 and the chairman of its audit committee.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Un Kwok Kee, John, aged 46, joined the Group as its head of finance
and administration in 2010. Mr. Un has over 22 years of experience in the
financial accounting, company secretarial field, initial public offering and
auditing. Mr. Un holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
University of Wales and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Fung Mei Ling, aged 43, joined the Group as the head of compliance
of the Group in 2010. She is the company secretary of the Company and
is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the Group. Ms. Fung
holds a Master of Finance degree from Curtin University of Technology.
Ms. Fung is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administration. She
had been the company secretary of certain listed companies in Hong Kong
and has over 10 years of experience in the area of company secretarial. She
is also currently the company secretary and the authorised representative of

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Chu Hiu Fung, aged 39, is the head of internal control of the Group.
Mr. Chu has over 17 years of experience in the valuation industry. From
1995 to 1997, he worked in American Appraisal Hongkong Limited as valuer
during which his duties included asset inspection, assessing asset value and
preparing valuation report. Mr. Chu was then employed by RHL International
Property Consultants as manager responsible for fixed asset valuation during
the period from 1997 to 1998. He joined the Group in 1998 as manager of
the industrial facilities division of Greater China Appraisal Limited and was
promoted to senior manager of Greater China Appraisal Limited in 2002. He
was then promoted to associate — valuation project in 2005 and assistant
vice president in 2006. He is experienced in valuation of tangible assets and
is mainly responsible for the project management, coordination and review
of other valuers’ work. Mr. Chu is a member of International Association of
Consultants, Valuators and Analysts. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor degree

in Manufacturing Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheung Kam Shing, Terry, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010 and he
is currently the chief operating officer of the Company who is responsible to
assist the managing director of the Company for the day-to-day operations
of asset advisory, asset appraisal, corporate and consultancy services of the
Group. He is the director of certain companies of the Group. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Master degree in Science from the University of London. He
has over 29 years of experience in finance industry including investment
banking, fund management, and listed companies. From 1984 to 1986,
Mr. Cheung worked in a Japanese securities company as sales executive to
cover Japan market. From 1986 to 1989, he was employed as a securities
dealer by Fidelity Investment Management (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung was
then employed by a securities company as marketing manager during the
period from 1989 to 1991 to cover South East Asia equities markets. From
1991 to 1994, he worked in another securities company as senior manager.
Mr. Cheung was employed by a finance company from 1994 to 2000 as
associate director responsible for equity sales activities of Hong Kong and
other Asian securities markets. From 2000 to 2005, he was appointed
as the managing director of Culturecom Holdings Limited, a company
engaged in publishing at the time. He was responsible for various areas
including business planning, due diligence, financial analysis and structuring
transactions. During the period from 2005 to 2010, Mr. Cheung was
appointed as the managing director of a private investment company whose
principal business is private equity investment including but not limited to
PRC real estate development and other direct investment. He is currently the
independent non-executive director of the China Medical System Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHEE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to

present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company committed to achieve high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and enhance its corporate value.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company complied with the code provisions in the
CG Code with the exception of the code provision A.2.1. Details of such

deviation will be explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for overseeing
the overall strategy and development of the Company as well as monitoring
the internal control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the
Group. The Board sets the overall strategy and directions for the Group with

a view to developing its business and enhancing the shareholders value.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall strategy,
monitor business development as well as the financial performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated certain duties and authorities to the

management for the day-to-day management of the Group's operation.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices
on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; etc. The Board held meetings from time to time
whenever necessary. During the year, the Board reviewed the compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report and the
effectiveness of the internal controls systems of the Group through the audit

committee of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Ip Kwok
Kwong (managing director) and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (chairman), Mr. Wu Chi Keung and
Mr. Wan Kam To. The attendance records of the Directors for the Board,

committee and general meetings of the Company for the year are as follows:

BEEE® (5

EXglRER —RRTERRE AL (B
FRRE)N=RBIFNTEZEHGERER L
E(ER) BEREERFHERE - FRE
ENARAESFEEE TR MBRRXK
G2 HEEMT

No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held

HEEERY (ETEENY

Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
EExg EREEE FHZEEE REZEE RREFKE
Directors Bz
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong REREE 5/5 N/A 17 11 17
TR
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RRERE 12 N/A N/A N/A 17
(retired on 3 August 2012) (7R2012F TER TEA TEA
8A3HEM)
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHTEE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter BERBLE 5/5 4/4 17 11 171
Mr. Wu Chi Keung EREE 5/5 4/4 17 11 171
Mr. Wan Kam To FRELE 5/5 4/4 N/A N/A 17
A it

An executive committee of the Company was formed comprising of one
executive Director, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and the management, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Keung. The executive committee is to enhance the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group to be run effectively and was
delegated by the Board of certain duties and authority relating to the areas
in accounting operation of the Group and contracting with outsiders in the

ordinary course of business of the Group.

During the year, all Directors have received regular updates on the changes
to and developments in the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the
directors. Additionally, trainings have been attended by the Directors covering
a wide range of topics including directors’ duties, accounting standards and
updates on the GEM Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFO").
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors (the “INED"”) with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs, together with the executive Director, ensure that the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with the relevant standards. The Company has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their

independence is in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The term of appointment of each INED is for a period of three years
commencing from May 2011 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with

the articles of association of the Company.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer with the title
of chief executive officer (the "CEQ") but instead the duties of a CEO are
performed by Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, the managing director of the Company,
in the same capacity as the CEO of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in the securities of
the Company by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all
the Directors have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during

the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in May 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises one executive Director
and two INEDs, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter
and Mr. Wu Chi Keung. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Chi Keung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are formulating
remuneration policies, making recommendations on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors. The Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance
and current market situation. The remuneration committee adopted the
model under the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Director and senior

management.

During the year, the remuneration committee held one meeting to review the
remuneration policy and review and approve the remuneration packages of

the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

Directors are also the eligible participants under the share option scheme of
the Company as disclosed in the report of the directors in this report. Details
of emoluments of the Directors for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the
financial statements and the retirement benefit schemes is disclosed in note

13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee in May 2011 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM Listing Rules.
The nomination committee comprises one executive Director and two INEDs,
namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi
Keung. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of Directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The nomination should be
taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential

contributions to the Company.

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the policy and procedures for nomination of

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in May 2011 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code of the GEM Listing Rules.
The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr.
Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wan Kam To. The committee is chaired
by Mr. Wu Chi Keung.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to supervise the internal
control policies, the financial reporting systems and procedures of the
Company; to review the financial statements and reports of the Group;
and to review the terms of engagement and the scope of audit work of the

auditor.

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group with the management and the Company’s
auditor; discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the audited financial statements and unaudited interim financial
statements; and reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial statements and

the internal control of the Company with the management.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant

doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.

During the year, remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the Group

are approximately HK$580,000 for audit services and HK$179,000 for non-

audit services, respectively.

23

BEREES

ARRER20MFS AR ERZE S WiRE
BIZEIR L AR A 3 EDA <7 RIBR A & T R A 40
CEBREEGKEBEBRE=RBIUIFNE
BIffEmEE RS RBALERFHBLE-
HEREERZZBENER-

BERZEENIERGAEEARRINALIE
EES BBRRESNEF BRI AEER
BAF MR AMNIRE © DA oA 5 A BRED #) & BE 16K
MBZTAENEE -

FRN BERZEQHERERANRARZHEME
EHASERMZEHRAULED A E X
B AMERRMERREE (BREEZN
BHELAREBZT R B RR)ETH W
WEREEBEMARRZRKEEXFTEMBR
RN EREE

EENUBRBRRNER

EEHERRSEEVBHRR (ZERREAEE
R AT R AEE 2 BB R E e E
F-EFXAANBEFMERTEEEATHAR
ARBRERNFEERRBZEHRMN -

R B Em 52 H 3 A

ARRHZEEMBEARNE SN AR BEE2013F
BANHLEFEMBRER CRRIENRH
AR E BB RE] —F0e

FRANEED B REZRE LIEEZRBE
) % JE [m) A% B8R <2 1 9 5 B - 9 31 49 &580,000
77T 5.179,0007% T °

REEXRBEERLA
2013 &%



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHES

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

During the year, the Company reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems which includes the policies, procedures, monitoring
and communication activities and standard of behaviour established for

safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the shareholders,
holding at the date of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, may require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to

convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. The written requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office of the Company, specifying the shareholders’
contact details and the resolution intended to be put forward at general

meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as a Director
at general meeting, shareholders are requested to follow the articles of
association of the Company. A written notice signed by a shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a written notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least seven
days and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting of the Company
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for

election as a Director are posted on the Company's website.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for the Company's information
to the extent that such information is publicly available. Shareholders may
also make enquiries to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On
Centre, 6 — 8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It committed to a policy of open and timely

disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The corporate website of the Company (www.gca.com.hk) provides an

effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year, there had been no significant change in the Company’s

constitutional documents.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 49 to 135.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.5 cent per
share (2012: HK1 cent) to the shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 14 August 2013.

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 3 December 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 18 May 2011. On
31 May 2011, the shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
(CONTINUED)

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented an issue of 125,000,000 new shares during its initial
public offering (the “IPO") and a capitalisation issue of 374,999,000 shares
in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the 125,000,000
new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 per share. The gross
proceeds of the IPO received by the Company were approximately HK$90
million, and the net proceeds were approximately HK$78 million. Details
of the plan for the use of proceeds from the IPO are set out in the section
headed "“Reasons for the Placing and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
Details of use of proceeds since the listing are set out in the sections headed
“Use of the Net Proceeds from the Company'’s Placing” and “Comparison
of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress” in the Management

Discussion & Analysis in this report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out on page 136.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this

report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 29 to the financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company'’s reserve available for distribution to equity
holders comprising share premium account and retained profits, amounted
to approximately HK$77.7 million (2012: HK$76.6 million).

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the year are disclosed in

note 36 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (“Prosperity Investment”) is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 310). Prosperity
Investment is indirectly interested in the entire issued share capital of Simply
Joy Investments Limited (“Simply Joy”). Simply Joy is interested in 20% of
GCA Professional. GCA Professional is interested in the entire issued share
capital of Brilliant One. Brilliant One interested in 71.71% of the issued share
capital of the Company upon the listing. In July 2012, Prosperity Investment
disposed Simply Joy together with its 20% shareholding in GCA Professional
(the "Disposal”).

Under the GEM Listing Rules, for so long as Prosperity Investment, remains

a connected person of the Company until the Disposal. The transactions

described below constituted connected transactions upon the listing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Lease between the Group and connected person with
rental income receiving from connected person

Lease by Linkson Investment Limited (“Linkson”) in relation to an
office in Hong Kong

On 26 July 2010, Linkson (as tenant) entered into an agreement with Hang
Lung Real Estate Agency Limited as agent for AP Success Limited (the
“Landlord”) pursuant to which the Landlord agreed to lease an office located
at room 2701-02 and 2703-08 on the 27th Floor of Shui On Centre at 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for the period of three

years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012.

On 16 December 2010, Linkson and Prosperity Investment entered into
a licence agreement (the “Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement”),
pursuant to which Linkson agreed to licence a portion of the Property
to Prosperity Investment, for a period of three years commencing from
1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012. The details of the
payment terms under the Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement are
contained in the Prospectus headed “Continuing connected transactions”.
During the year and until the Disposal, an amount of approximately
HK$0.39 million was classified as continuing connected transactions under

this agreement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rule 20.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. Based on this letter from the auditor and
after their own review, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirm the Continuing Connected Transactions for the year have
been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with
the Agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
51.1% (2012: 52.5%) of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer amounted to 17.3% (2012: 21.6%,).

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the

knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers share

capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (Managing Director)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong
(retired on 3 August 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Chi Keung
Mr. Wan Kam To

In accordance with articles 83 to 85 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi Keung will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The independent non-executive Directors are

appointed for a period of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 14 to 18 of this report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from May 2011 and
will continue thereafter. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from May 2011. All the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the

Company pursuant to its articles of association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company

EERFTETHRAERADRAR
HEBEED 2RO -HERS
RESESERKXR

201353 A318  AARIEERFETHASR
RARFREBEZE (TERABFHFRPER
Bl ([355 REIE GG ) EXVER) KRR % -
Rt REHT  BAREESREAEEHIEXV
BETRESD B G AR T LB =
R#AE (BREESBEESRBEKRINZSE
B E RIEREANER RAR) IRE
&5 KB IR0 835218 B AZ K BIFTIE 2
MRz e kAR  RIEAIER ET R
A 585.46 5.6 71K K i B /B A& AN R A J B A2
ATz s ROAB AT -

(a) RAEQFZREE0.01E T 2K
BzHER

Approximate

percentage

Number of of issued

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held share capital
EEBITRA

EEpE EEtE RO E BABF DL
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (“Mr. Ip”) (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%

RV ([HEE]) (M) RESEENE R

Note:

1. 358,575,000 shares are held by Brilliant One Holdings Limited
("Brilliant One") which is wholly-owned by GCA Professional Services
Group Limited (“GCA Professional”), formerly known as Genius Ideas
International Ltd. GCA Professional is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick
Investments Limited (“Smart Pick”) and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is
owned as to 58.76% by GC Holdings Limited (“"GC Holdings"”) which
is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Long positions in the shares of associated

EERFETBRAEREAATR
HEB LB KR4 HERG
REHEEZRAE &)

(b) REBEERGD ZHFR

corporations
Approximate
percentage
Name of of interest
associated Number of in associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares held corporation
EREEEE
EREHN
EEps HELEE8 BHME FERAEE BAL
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Brilliant One Interest in controlled corporation 200 100%
BRA (M) Brilliant One REHERNER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GCA Professional Interest in controlled corporation 5,100 51%
RHRE M) EEEZ REHEERNER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GCA Professional Beneficial owner 612 6.12%
BRE (K1) EEEZ EREAA
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Smart Pick Interest in controlled corporation 5,876 58.76%
RHEE (M) Smart Pick REHEERNER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GC Holdings Beneficial owner 1 100%
BRA (M) GC Holdings EGBAA
Note: Kiat

1. The Company is owned as to 71.71% by Brilliant One. Brilliant One

is wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to 51% by
Smart Pick and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to 58.76% by
GC Holdings. GC Holdings is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

() Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company under equity derivatives

BEERFTETHRAEREZATR
HEBEIER 2R#K HER®G
REHEEZRAE &)

() BRERAITETIRERAATEE
R zHER

Approximate

Number of percentage

underlying of issued

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held share capital

st HEBRITRE

EENSR EEME RO E BREDL

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
BRfS = B S (HaET) ExmEAA

Mr. Wu Chi Keung (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
HAESR LA (HYETT) ExmEAA

Mr. Wan Kam To (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%

FIREEE (HET) ExlAA
Note:

1. The Directors were granted options under the share option scheme of
the Company (“Scheme”), details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of the

FERRRAQARG REBR
R2EBERXE

7201363 HA31H8 * AN ATRARR R K48
R PR IRIRE S R ERIIEXVEE2
R 835 # B FE AR T K B A2 BT 2 7R 0%k
B U RAIRIRE 5 M HI B R0 2833618 B sl 8k
AARMEFEHELMAZERIABLT

RARFZREEOBTZKRMG 2

Company

"R

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name Nature of interest shares held share capital
HERITHRAE
=% EEME RO E BREI L
Brilliant One (Note 1) Beneficial owner 358,575,000 71.71%
Brilliant One (#72£1) EmEAA
GCA Professional (Note 7) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
EEHE (WiE1) Rt EE R
Smart Pick (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
Smart Pick (A73£1) ZEGEEOER
Easy Gain Development Limited Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
(“Easy Gain") (Note 1) ZEGEEER
Easy Gain Development Limited
([Easy Gain]) (Ht7E1)
GC Holdings (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
GC Holdings (#15#1) REHEE R
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
BRE (Hit1) REHEE R
BEEXERBBRAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company (Continued)

FERRARAQ KRG RERBERK
rREZRAE &)

RAQATEREEVIEBITZRGZ
e E

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name Nature of interest shares held share capital
HEBTRA
=% EmME RO EE BHESL
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.71%
(“Mr. Wong") (Note 1) REGEE O ER
| EAE ([EEED) (K1)
Golden Trump Limited (Note 2) Having a security interest 358,575,000 71.71%
Golden Trump Limited ( #77%2) BERZ#ER
ADM Galleus Fund Il Limited Having a security interest 358,575,000 71.71%
("ADM Fund II") (Note 2) BFHRBER
ADM Galleus Fund Il Limited
(TADM Fund Il ]) (#t5t2)
ADM Investment Management Limited  Investment manager 358,575,000 71.71%

(Note 2) REKIR
ADM Investment Management Limited

(Kiat2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Brilliant One is wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to
51% by Smart Pick, 42.88% by Easy Gain and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick
is owned as to 58.76% by GC Holdings which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
Easy Gain is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

2. Golden Trump Limited is owned as to 17.86% by ADM Galleus Fund |
Limited (“ADM Fund ") and 82.14% by ADM Fund Il. ADM Fund | and ADM
Fund Il are wholly-owned by ADM Investment Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2013, other than the interests in shares of the Company and
its associated corporations held by the Directors, the chief executives and the
substantial shareholders of the Company stated above, there were no other
persons with interests recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests in
any business, which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally approved and adopted the Scheme by a resolution
of the Company on 18 May 2011 whereby the Board was authorised to
grant options (the “Options”) to subscribe for the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) to the eligible participant, including Director and employee,
as defined in the Scheme. The Scheme is valid for a period of ten years

commencing from the adoption date as defined in the Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

A summary of the movements of the outstanding Options under the Scheme

during the year is as follows:

Number of Options

BREHE

Outstanding
as at Granted
1 April during
Eligible participant 2012 the year

Outstanding

Cancelled as at
during 31 March
the year 2013

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

R2012%
4A81A
EX

M2013E
38318

RERAL REARE  REATE REAXR  REAEH HARTE

IR AERTE (&)

Py R BN RITE B RE 2B
EHEMT

Exercise
price

per Share
HKS

Date of grant Exercisable period

SRITEE
oo

RHAS i

Directors

Bz

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan,
Peter
BERBEE

200,000 - - - - 200,000

Mr. Wu Chi Keung 200,000 - - - - 200,000

iV

Mr. Wan Kam To 200,000 - - - - 200,000

FHERLE

Employees

-

4,290,000 - 40,000 600,000 - 3,650,000

Employees

-

1,800,000 - - - - 1,800,000
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020  6.1.2012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201258188 22021465F17H

(REEREMA)

201251768

020 612012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2012458184 22021457178

(BREERMA)

201241 A6E

020  6.1.2012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201258188 22021465F17R

(REEREMA)

201251768

020  6.1.2012 a) One-third of the 3,570,000 Options are
exercisable from 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021.
One-third of the Options are exercisable
from 1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2014 t0 17.5.2021.
HAR=5-3,570,000(7 B REA #2012
FIANEE0NEATEAR =5
—BRETR2013F1 F1B 2202155
RTBOE RES=H—BRETR
1451 1B 2202155817876 -

201241 A6H

b) One-half of the 80,000 Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021
and the remaining one-half of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021.
H e =5 —80,000(7 BRI 20135
TRBZ201E5R17R116  RET 5
—ERETR201451 B1BZE201 5
SRR
020 6.1.2012 One-half of the Options are exercisable
from 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-half of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2013 t0 17.5.2021.
—F BB R201261 A308 £202155
ATBHR RATS-+BRETR
135 1A1B 2202155717877

201241 A6H

BEEEXBRBEARLA
2013 &%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Options

BREHE

Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed
1 April during during during
Eligible participant 2012 the year the year the year

R2012%
4A1A
RERAL HAME  REREE  RERTE  RERXN

Exercise
price
per Share

HKS

SRITEE
A

B ERTE

Date of grant

HHAS

Exercisable period

s

Employees 330,000 - - -
ks

Employees 360,000 - - 120,000
s

Employees 300,000 - - 60,000
&8

Employees 60,000 - - -
B2

Employees 640,000 - - 310,000
s

Employees 450,000 - - -
E&

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
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020

020

020

0.20

020

0.20

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

2012168

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

20125168

6.1.2012

201251768

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.7.2012 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2013 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014
10 17.5.2021.

=A—BRETRA01247A18 22015
SRR = H—BRETR2013F
1R1BZ201F5A1TBE  REH#=
A—BRETR201451B1BE2015
SRR

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to0 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

=A—BRETRA013F1 1B E201F
SRR =/ —BRETR2014%
1R1BZ201E5A1TB1TE  REH#=
A —BRETR201551 1822015
SRR

1.7.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
201247818 Z2021558178
(BEERMA)

1.1.2013-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2013F1 B1HZ2021458178
(BfEEEMA)

30.1.2012 - 17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2012618300 22021457178
(BEERMA)

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

=H—BRETR013F1 A1B22015F
SATRTE - =H—BRETHR2014F
1R1BZ2NF5A17RAE RESH=
A —BRETHR01551 B1B 22015
SA17RTTE.
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EEEWmE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

BIRERTE ()

Number of Options
BRE#A
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
1 April during during during during 31 March price
Eligible participant 2012 the year the year the year the year 2013 per Share  Date of grant Exercisable period
HKS
R2012% R2013%
4718 38318
SERAL HATE  REARE  REARTE  RERXR REAEH HATHE SROKE RUEH Eix:d
B
Employees 900,000 - - - - 900,000 020  6.1.2012 One-third of the Options are exercisable from
- 1.7.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.
201241 76H =A—BRETR01357A18 22021 F
SRR = H—BRETR2014%
1R1BZ201F5A17BE  REH=
P—BRETR015F1 F1BE2015
SRR
9,730,000 - 40,000 1,090,000 - 8,600,000
Note: Pt
1. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the 1. BEEBTINERNTEEREZ BER KD

date on which the Options were exercised by employees during the year is

HK$0.211.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 41,810,000 Shares and represents 8.36% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

An offer for the grant of Options must be accepted within twenty-one days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an Option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an Option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in respect
of any particular Option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Option; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date

of the Option.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each grantee
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month period

must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted
at any time under the Scheme together with Options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being of the Group shall
not exceed such number of Shares as equals 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time. An
Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISOR'S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2013 neither Grand Vinco Capital Limited (“Vinco Capital”)
nor any of its directors, employees or associates had any interests in the
shares of the Company or any member of the Group, or any right to subscribe
for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any

member of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company applied the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year, the
Company complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, save for the

exception explained in the Corporate Governance Report of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued

share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has made substantial efforts to fulfill its corporate social
responsibilities, by promoting sustainable growth within the Group and in
the society. The Group is committed to provide a safe, healthy, and enriching
working environment for its employees. The Group hosted various after-work
activities or sporting events for its employees during the year to promote the
importance of work-life balance. The Group has attached importance to the
promotion of anti-corruption and integrity promotion system. The Group
emphasizes code of conduct which forms part of the staff manual. Employees
are required to act with integrity and to report any suspected bribery and
money laundering cases. Whistle-blowing procedures are in place which
allows direct reporting to the chairman of the audit committee. In addition,
employees are required to declare any conflict of interests when performing
their duty. During the year, the Group’s professional teams has delivered
speeches as invited by professional institutions such as the Hong Kong
Productivity Council, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Association of International Accountants, Chinese University of Hong Kong,
HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education and Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. The Group takes on interns from local universities

every year.
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The Group emphasizes the importance of energy conservation and
environmental protection as part of its corporate culture and encourages
its employees to minimize the use of paper by promoting digitalization of
documents and better use of waste paper. The Group has also participated in
a carbon reduction program by replacing all traditional fluorescent lamp with

energy-saving lamp within the working area.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 36 to the

financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 were audited
by the Company’s auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ip Kwok Kwong

Managing Director

Hong Kong
28 June 2013
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@) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREATERCHINA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 135, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2013, and of the Group'’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B R2013F3A31HILFE
2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124F
B 5 FERT FHIT

Turnover EEH 6 96,231 68,336
Cost of services BRTE AR A (29,520) (19,996)
Gross profit EF 66,711 48,340
Other income H 4 A 7 2,547 2,863
Marketing expenses TS HEER X (184) (337)
Administrative expenses THHAXZ (36,236) (37,399)
Other operating expenses HAth & BRI X (1,801) (486)
Profit from operations mEERR 31,037 12,981
Finance costs B 7% AR 9 (15) (11)
Share of results of associates and DEEEE RN E R

a jointly controlled entity —HREGIE S XA (239) 1,146
Loss on deemed disposal of partial BIEH & — Mg R RE 5

interests in an associate s 2 B 18 - (1,051)
Profit before tax RR% AR A 30,783 13,065
Income tax expense Frig % X 10 (3.854) (2,742)
Profit for the year attributable to KATEE ABMEEEEF

owners of the Company 11 26,929 10,323
Other comprehensive income, Hit2mBA  HE:

net of tax:
Exchange differences on translating BREINREBHEN Z2

foreign operations (45) (15)
Total comprehensive income forthe ZATEAABEFERZEKRA

year attributable to owners of the e

Company 26,884 10,308
Earnings per share BREF 15

Basic (HK cents) B (B 5.39 2.15

Diluted (HK cents) s OB 5.39 2.15




At 31 March 2013

R20134F3H31H
2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
B = FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y RE KRB 16 1,689 2,210
Investments in associates and REEE A E R —RER
a jointly controlled entity EHEENRE 18 23,588 23,714
Available-for-sale financial asset AItHESmEE 19 2,241 =
27,518 25,924
Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables & 5 W RIE 20 79,159 39,407
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE Ze Kk
receivables H b fE W SR IE 8,231 4,476
Financial asset at fair value through EBEAREBETAEBRDN
profit or loss CREE 21 206 1,469
Amounts due from related parties JE Y A 3EE 75 BUIE 22 1,370 382
Pledged bank deposit BEERRITER 23 1,014 1,004
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE & 23 19,458 37,073
109,438 83,811
Current liabilities FREBEE
Trade payables & N RIE 24 5,082 1,972
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R H A A 5RIE 3,761 5,826
Amount due to a director B —REEHIE 25 375 =
Obligations under finance leases MEMERME 26 162 144
Current tax liabilities mBHIEARE 8,731 5,038
18,111 12,980
Net current assets REBEEFE 91,327 70,831
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERRBER 118,845 96,755
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Obligations under finance leases MEREEMR 26 167 342
NET ASSETS EEFE 118,678 96,413




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B RS IR N 3R

At 31 March 2013

R2013F3H31H

2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
B 5 FEx FHET

Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital %N 29 5,000 5,000
Reserves & 30 113,678 91,413
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 118,678 96,413

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2013.

Ip Kwok Kwong
HEEN
Director

EFE
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Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter
BERR
Director
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REEXRBEERA A

2013 £



At 31 March 2013

R20134F3H31H
2013 2012
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
B = FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB A RRIEE 17 - =
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b & W 5k I8 479 484
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT B R RN IE 17 71,063 78,489
Pledged bank deposit EERRITER 23 1,014 1,004
Bank and cash balances RIT IR & 23 11,052 6,063
83,608 86,040
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H At & 5 5RIE 221 4,021
Amount due to a subsidiary FE A — I B A B3R 17 - 73
221 4,094
Net current assets REEEFE 83,387 81,946
NET ASSETS BEFE 83,387 81,946
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A& 29 5,000 5,000
Reserves i 30(b) 78,387 76,946
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 83,387 81,946

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2013.

Ip Kwok Kwong

EEK
Director

EZE

EEEN2013F6H28H -

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter
BERE
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—u— 7
Z \ ll\EIn\
l‘/T\ * Ej] :Ll%

For the year ended 31 March 2013

ELZE2013F3A31HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN
Foreign
currency Share-based
Share Capital translation payment
Share premium reserve reserve Retained reserve
capital  (note 30(c)(iii))  (note 30(c)(ii))  (note 30(c)(i) earnings  (note 30(c)iv)  Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NRGBRER
R R E EXGFE NEERRE PASEN: 1]
(B30 (Ffz£30 (Ffz£30 (M3£30
A (c)ii)) (Q)i)) (0)i) REEF @) BHEEE
T FTHT T T T T T
At 1 April 2011 #2014 7818 3,00 = 2,159 15 30,967 - 36,341
Total comprehensive income FEXAKAEE
for the year - - - (15) 10,323 - 10,308
Recognition of share-based payments A LAR{D AR 2 (3% - - - - - 3,29 3,29
Transfer of share-based payments ~ EREREHTEE 2
relating to the share reward to R A7 B8 < LARR 17
employees REW R - - - - 2,956 (2,956) =
Effect of group reorganisation SEEE FE (3,200) - 3,200 = = = =
Share issued under the BEERNMCETETLRNG
capitalsation issue 3,750 (3,750) - - - - -
Share issued pursuant to the placing 1R Ec & %47 2 4D 1,250 88,750 - - - - 90,000
Share placing expenses B ERS - (13,532) = = = = (13,532)
Interim dividends declared by REARAERF SRS
subsidiaries (note 14) (HizL14) - - - - (30,000) - (30,000)
Changes in equity for the year FEERE 1,800 71,468 3,200 (15) (16,721) 340 60,072
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 #201263A318 &
201254A1H 5,000 71,468 5,359 - 14,246 340 96,413
Total comprehensive FEZAKAER
income for the year - - - (45) 26,929 - 26,884
Recognition of share-based payments HE2LAR{D AEHE 2 (3% - - - - - 373 373
Effect of forfeiture of share options SR E R i 2 BAEZ
granted v - - - = 4 (42) =
Share issued pursuant to exercise of IR IREERIEZ THEEITZ
share options ) - 10 - - - @) 8
2012 final dividends (note 14) 2012F REAR B (ME14) - - - - (5,000) - (5,000)
Changes in equity for the year FEERS = 10 = (45) 21,971 329 22,265
At 31 March 2013 #2013F3A318 5,000 71,478 5,359 (45) 36,217 669 118,678
53 BEHERKERA R

2013 £



For the year ended 31 March 2013

B B2013F3A31HILFE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
FERT FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRESRE
Profit before tax B B4 A s A 30,783 13,065
Adjustments for: AT ZIEFE :
Share of results of associates and DB E R E R
a jointly controlled entity —HERENEREES 239 (1,146)
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE BEK
plant and equipment B2 BE 162 -
Loss on deemed disposals of partial RIELE —[EE = QR D
interests in an associate w2 B8 - 1,051
Allowance for trade receivables B 5 W IE R 851 493
Allowance for amount due from FEM — RS E 4
a jointly controlled entity RIERAE 1,099 =
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables B 5 EWGRIERER T (149) (255)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LA #3245 H AR 1D
RERZNRFEX 373 3,296
Depreciation e 641 521
Finance costs R ID N 15 11
Interest income FEHBA (124) (132)
Operating profit before working capital changes BEESBEFILLEN 33,890 16,904
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e IEE N (40,454) (34,002)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERIE e REMER
deposits and other receivables FRIE (1), m (3,755) 1,430
Decrease in financial asset at fair value RAREEFABEN
through profit or loss EREERD 1,263 247
Increase in trade payables B 5 & 5 IE G BN 3,110 630
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other FEETIE B R E b 5 IE
payables CRid) /1 (2,065) 2,328
Cash used in operations KEFTARE® (8,011) (12,463)
Income tax paid EATER (161) (1,173)
Finance costs paid [RAREUE TN (15) (11)
Net cash used in operating activities K EEFTAIR S F8E (8,187) (13,647)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETHRERE
Dividend income received from an associate B — @ a2 FWELZ IR BB A 535 300
Acquisition of an associate g i A= /N] (281) (26,017)
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—EEREFEENRE (2,469) -
Investment in available-for-sale financial asset RAEHESREENRE (1,866) =
Interest received 2 UF B 124 132
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEMXE - BEREHE (282) (857)
Increase in pledged bank deposit B HERITE RGN (10) (1,004)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEAZIREFE (4,249) (27,446)




For the year ended 31 March 2013

B FE2013F3 31 HIEFE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REETHRERE
Proceeds from placing of shares B & A% 10 P18 350 IR - 90,000
Share placing expenses AR 19 B & Bl 52 - (13,532)
Exercise of share options TR 2171 8 =
Repayment for finance leases BERmERE (157) (161)
Decrease in amount due from a related party FE MY BR 5= 5 SRR - 1,418
Decrease in amounts due to related parties R R A FIER - (8,249)
Dividends paid =R (5,000) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing mMEE® (FTA) s
activities REFRE (5,149) 69,476
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBEeZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) EmEEE (17,585) 28,383
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHMZE (30) (18)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNESRESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 37,073 8,708
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRANESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 19,458 37,073
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERALZEEYH N (ME23)
EQUIVALENTS (note 23)
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 5 19,458 37,073




For the year ended 31 March 2013
B Z20139F3 31 H1F FE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 3
December 2010. The address of its registered office of the Cayman
Islands is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2013,
Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“B.V.l."), is the immediate parent; GC Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the B.V.l., is the ultimate parent and Mr.
Ip Kwok Kwong is the ultimate controlling party (the “Controlling

Shareholder”) of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 31 May 2011.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2012. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the
Group's financial statements and amounts reported for the current year

and prior years.

AARR2010F 12838 RBE R AE
EHSHSEMRZIAERAREGRR
GIEE WIS I Rl F = A vE:
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands o H 3 2 & 2 10 BE (7 1A BB AT B
B386-85 I & P L 27182703 F °

ARARRREERAR - EHRBARNE
REBBNPBERRMET7 -

ARAEEFRR N2013F3/318 -
Brilliant One Holdings Limited ( —Z A 3
BELZHE ([RBEREZES])TMK
MEAR)REARBNEES R GC
Holdings Limited ( —SRAEBE XL A S
M AR]) BARBMRRIAF KR
R ERARDTMSZEER T ([
BRARER]) o

KA BRI R2011495 831 B E &85
ERGERAR ([BERFT])BIER £

o

=

RAFE  AEEEHABESFTAD
2([BAGHMAg] ) BMEEEKE
AER2012F4RBRBHEGHFE
ERE B RIS RS RT BB RS
Bl ([EAMEHREER]) - BEMBR
ERABDERBMBMEER: BEES
R KRB MR ENIE REBITE
BRI E LR EEBREE 2 25K
R AEEUBREZ ZIIAREFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 e AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 March 2013

B FE2013F3 31 HIFF/ZF
2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results

of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivatives which are

carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these

financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B Z20139F3 31 H1F FE

REZENBHRREANEE ST BERH

financial statements are set out below. AMAAR o

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

(a) Consolidation (a) ZZEERHE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

REMBHRREFBEARARMENBL
AmRBEE3A31H IEM MBS HRE -
B AR I AR EIEHIE RS - 125
EREARRE BRI BN
ERRAMMCE R HIRGN & - ]R
IR AT 1T {6 2k AT SR ) B AR IR R AE Y
FEMZERFEAEBERTHIE
B T AZ B o

O POEETE T Ve Tl
HRRAR A ABE - AR 1L B
R -

SEARRRNR S - BRI RER
HEAE - BRIFERR B IR R EE
BRPTEREERBRE  BRIRE
BEBETTHH MBARNETHK
REEEREREHENR  RBRELA
REBRMNNBRE — K-

RAR R FBARREF - RETE AR
BTN AR E R E R B G
SRR - NI B AR 2 KA RA QAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3A31H IFFZ

(b) Merger accounting for business combination

under common control

The companies now comprising the Group are under the common
control of the Controlling Shareholder. Pursuant to the group
reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) which is more fully
explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate reorganisation”
in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 25
May 2011 (the “Prospectus”), the Company acquired the entire
interests of New Valiant Limited and Fidelia Investments Limited
and their subsidiaries on 18 May 2011 by way of swap of shares,

and the Company became the holding company of the Group.

As the Company and the Group were both controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder before and after the Group
Reorganisation, the Group Reorganisation was accounted for
as a business combination of entities under common control.
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared
based on the principles and procedures of merger accounting in
accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations” issued by the HKICPA, as if
the Group Reorganisation had occurred from the date when the
combining entities first came under the control of the Controlling

Shareholder.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities as if they had been
combined from the date when they first came under the control

of the Controlling Shareholder.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows include the results and cash
flows of the combining entities from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the

date of the common control combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B Z20139F3 31 H1F FE

(b) Merger accounting for business combination

(9]

under common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the Group structure immediately after the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence at the end of each reporting
period. The net assets of the combining entities are combined
using the existing book values from the Controlling Shareholder’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or gain on bargain purchase at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the Controlling

Shareholder’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net profit
or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve consistency of

the Group's accounting policies.

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date

fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3A31H IFFZ

(9]

(d)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the

Company.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant

influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of
each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3A31H IFFZ

(d) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group's share
of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated foreign

currency translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3A31H IFFZ

(e) Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to
joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control over the economic activity when the strategic financial and
operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control (the “venturers”).

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the
establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an

interest.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method and is
initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
jointly controlled entity in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the jointly controlled
entity’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is tested for impairment together with the investment at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost

of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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(e) Joint venture (Continued)

The Group's share of a jointly controlled entity’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity. If the jointly controlled entity subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after

its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a jointly controlled entity that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference between
(i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that jointly controlled entity and (ii)
the Group's share of the net assets of that jointly controlled entity
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that jointly controlled
entity and any related accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
jointly controlled entities have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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(f) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(f) sMisE

@)

L) hE R 2 I B
MAAEEE BENEIEHRE
MEE DEREBEEMENE
EEEREOEE (Y E
BB RA B HWEAS
TLRF - BTLAARANER
R SGE

(ii) W& E M BIRENI S

R &8

MAINEETT RO R 5 Ty 9] 2 B
R ER A 5 B H 89 # b &
BMERNEEE - LIMEETE
MEBEERABBEDRANE
BEHRRNEXRLE - B IR
BERREHN BB IR IER
TR o

BARBEFERAINGGHE
HFEMIER TIREE A B
BEERAWEXKBE-

EFEBBEENRENEGE
T 45 25 FERR B - % BB BV (E A
BE 34 4B BE 0 0 Eo At 22 T e 2
NER-BHFERARBENRE
P18 28 TE TR - % B I ) (AR
PE 3 4B AR BB 0 B B FERR



For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3A31H IFFZ

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are translated into the

Company's presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange

rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 to 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 4 1o 5 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(h) Leases

The Group as lessee

()

(ir)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease

payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as

owned assets.
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(h) Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

(i) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss.
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(j) Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date

basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a

contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the

timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially

measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs

except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets.

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of these

investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets not classified as trade and other receivables, held-
to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective evidence
that the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are recognised in profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method is

recognised in profit or loss.
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(j) Investments (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each

reporting period.

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance

is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k) Trade and other receivables (Continued)

)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

(Continued)
(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of asset appraisal services and
corporate services and consultancy is recognised when the
services are rendered and the transactions can be measured
reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the Group. Revenue from
progressively billed asset appraisal services is recognised by
reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction.
Revenue from appraisal services which are billed one-off are only
recognised when it is probable that the customers are willing
to settle the billing, which generally coincide with the reports
issue dates. Revenue from the provision of corporate services
and consultancy with specified period is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the period of services. Revenue from
success-based corporate services and consultancy is recognised
when the agreed services as set out in the agreements are

rendered.

mcREBEREZTAR (&

(n)

G) E5RAMENFHA

B 5 REMENFIRN SR E
RABEINE LRERES
BERAEORRBHKATE
BRIFRRIRMZEBM T BB
AIFE B TR ARG -

(i) #Ezm T A

ARREITHRE RS T AT
Y B H FIT 15 SR IR B I BT TR
AR

Uy 35 R

LATERR

REREEET RS R ERS

Rt e s R R RS R 58
A SfETE AR PHEBHEER
5 AT BT AR R B T LARERR © 2R
BRE#FARLRENEETE
RISEIE  HRER S TRNE D
LE T LATER < 2RE A — R MR A
%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%é’émgﬁﬁ
L — AR EREE
ﬁﬁ¢E%WH°K§ﬁMA%E%
PR ) 1 28 R 7% % 7 A 0 M 28 — MR
PR 75 BRI DA B AR R R © SR LABK R
7R BT 1 3 AR TS T RE R ) Uk as B
A 15 5 P 8L 10 17 T8 AR TS 1R R 12 T
LAHERR <



For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 220139F3 31 H1F FE

(n) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the provision of asset advisory services is recognised
when the revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Group, i.e. fixed fee revenue is recognised when
the relevant reports incidental to the transactions, such as due
diligence investigation, viability study and evaluation of the target
investment, is issued, and success-based revenue is recognised
when the customers receives or pays the considerations of the

underlying transactions.

Sub-leasing income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(o) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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(o) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all eligible employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss

represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(ir) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(p) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-

based vesting conditions.
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(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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(r) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(r)

B

1S H BN EAT 18 KoR IR TR 4R %8 -

BB BN IR T IR B AR BE A
HE - ERBSEN T BREMF RN
FE RIS AT IR A BB S IR B - TR
TEEBERVHTAHFEAR - &
B8 25 P RE SRS I N [R] AR [ 9 B
HRBRERNRESHRECATL
AR EFT IR EFE -

RERERMEBRENEERAE
IR T B £ 51 B & R Bi0% I Fr X A A8
FET BB Z 50 T UARER - IEERIE A
B—RIEMAEERB YL ZRE
R BERIBEERNRAEF A
S AT IR E R 2 - RBARH
HEEIARB AR IEE LN ER
w7 T OARERR o R E R R
BELNTER BN EERM
AT RN E A E
RAE(EBEURINFES A
EREERBENTHER

EFETR IR B EL B QB R
REMBREFEERRRERIEZE
R TR - M AR EA B £
TRHMEEZRNED MEREZER
AT RE N &I AT A% SRk R BR Sh o



For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3H31H IFFZ

(r)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.
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(s) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(t) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
investments and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of

the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements when material.
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period, are discussed

below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts based
on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.
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(9]

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

Fair value of investment

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active market, the
directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s warrants in its
associate, TodayIR Holdings Limited (“TodayIR"), details of which
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements, by considering
information from a variety of sources, including the latest financial
information of TodaylIR, the historical data on market volatility as

well as the price and industry and sector performance of TodayIR.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as part of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in

Renminbi and United States dollars.

(9]

(d)
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(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) SRR (4)
The following tables detail the Group's major exposure at the TR FEE R TR A HI R AN S B B BN
end of the reporting periods to foreign currency risk arising from B ENERREEXABELM
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. AEZEFEEINERR - H2FIB 8
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are LA 3 45 HA SR /O B HRBE R B /08
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates at the TLHIRE R £ 58

end of the reporting periods.

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
FBT FHT
Denominated in United States dollars A% FTaHE
Bank and cash balances IRTTRIR e A5 11 261
Trade receivables =) A& 3,094 =
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - i@ R H b FE W IR
other receivables 2,329 -
5,434 261
Denominated in Renminbi DAR¥SE
Trade receivables B S W RIE 48,492 16,547
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B RE M B RIE (774) =

47,718 16,574
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(a) ShEEEEE ()

TRETBRAE R AR B E
HE  ARERBEHAREEA
BREEENZZARNELE 8
38 5O 5 8 ¢ 5 P 0 BB 25

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit for the year that would have arisen if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at

the end of the reporting periods had changed at those dates,

assuming all other risk variables remained constant. o
2013 2012

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit in foreign in profit

exchange for the year exchange for the year

rates HK$'000 rates HK$'000

20135 20124F

FEE R FREHA

ExREH - S CRD) (e S| 67 2D

() FET (T#) FAT

United States dollars =TT 1% 45 1% 2
(1%) (45) (1%) (2)

Renminbi AR 3% 1,313 3% 373
(3%) (1,313) (3%) (373)

(b) EREER

AEBzBEARBEFABRRENE
REEDREZSHRSHRNAAE
BFtE-FHitt AEBERHRAE S
ErRER-

(b) Price risk

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.

At 31 March 2013, if the business value per share of the
investments increase/decrease by 10%, profit after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$261,000 (2012:
HK$687,000) higher/lower, arising as a result of the fair value

gain/loss of the investments.

M20134F3A318 ' T E 2 B R
EEEEEN R 10%  ARE
BERNEENG BEEECFE
4 12 % Il #5 12 h0 IR 2> £9261,000
770 (20124F : 687,000/ 70 ) °
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(c) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the pledged bank deposit, bank and
cash balances, trade and other receivables, financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss and amount due from a related
party included in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history. Amount

due from a related party are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposit and bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the Group's
three largest debtors accounted for 62% (2012: 63%) of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2013.

(0 FERME

SEAREMBARRKHEEMIRT
TR RITRReEHR B REM
R IR - RASEBEF ABRNE
BB B N JE WK R )5 IR R RR (B
RREBAKREEREENAEE

EREERR-

AEBERERRERAAERE
SERENEFRHERS EFTY)
EREWRETT IR -

BEEMRITHEARRRT MBS AR
BEERRAR  RERYFHRE
REEFERBLETREENRN
RITe

REEARZETEFRENEE
Bk R REZR2013F3A318 &
EE=XREBHAGHNE ZEKKIE
62% (20124 :63% ) °
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(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as

(d) RBEERE
AEBNBRATRERRE A
MM RHESER  ARREARR
RS AR E B R R
RBELER-

AEETRABNIHESHFMOT :

follows:
On demand
or less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERR
1EUT 1Z22F 2E55F B IB5F
FER FERT FERT FET
At 31 March 2013 7M2013F3H31H
Trade payables 2 5 e /18 5,082 - - -
Accruals and other FEFTIE B R H fth FE < RUIE
payables 2,397 - - -
Obligations under finance REFEE T
leases 172 172 - -
Amount due to a director {2 = IE 375 - - -
On demand
or less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERK
1E AT 1224F 2E5F B iB5F
FHET FHET FHET FAT
At 31 March 2012 72012563 AH31H
Trade payables 2 5 e /18 1,972 = = =
Accruals and other JERTIE B R EH Ath fE S RUIE
payables 5,278 - - -
Obligations under finance BEEMREE T
leases 158 172 187 -
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(e) Interest rate risk

(f)

(e)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank

deposits. These deposits bear interest at variable rates varied with

the then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 March 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/

(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, would have increased/(decreased) the

Group's profit for the year as follow:

AR =k

REBASZHBITHFRELNF X
[\ o FZ F I RIRF BN EFHE - H
TR E R TR E °

M2013F3 8318 - £ A H b &%
ERFTERBERT (et F kg
A,/ (FH)100EER  AEEHF
EmFlgEm,/ CRP)mT:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
FHERT FHET

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates F= EF(TH)
100 basis points 1001E £ & 199 377
(100) basis points (100) B £ 2 (199) (377)

Categories of the Group's financial (f) AEEM2013F38318H
instruments at 31 March 2013 SRTRAER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
FAR FAE
Financial assets: cREE:
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEEeREE 2,241 =
Financial asset at fair value through RAREBEBEFABENEREE
profit or loss
Held for trading FER 5 206 1,469
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ ERNEWRFE (2RESREESE
and cash equivalents): BY)
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 79,159 39,407
Deposits and other receivables & K E At e FRIA 5,456 1,793
Amounts due from related parties JiE W e 28 75 RRIR 1,370 382
Pledged bank deposit EERIRITER 1,014 1,004
Bank and cash balances RITRIB R 19,458 37,073
108,904 81,128
Financial liabilities: tRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEK AN SR E:
Trade payables Z 5 FEfT 58 5,082 1,972
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R H b T k1A 2,397 5,278
Amount due to a director JE—BESZFHIE 375 =
7,854 7,250
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(g) Fair values

Except as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements, the

carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial

liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial

position approximate their respective fair values.

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy which has 3 levels:

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2013:

(9) 2RfEE
BUBREM IO RBEIN 1A
BBERRRFRRAEBSREE
REBABNREERESANA
REBEMEE -

UTARBES BRETRA=E
DABERBE

FE:  HREEHRENERED
BERE (RIERE) -

F2B: F1EMEEOREN
S BESBBEEE (A
B REE (B{EER
HE)BESENEAR
e

3B UIRBTERETSEE
Mgt aERE ES
NEH (EEBRBAE
H) -

A2013FE3 831 A ABESHNE
=

Fair value measurement using: Total
BUTHEBHAENAAREE: et
Description =3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E1E E2fE #3E 2013%F
FET FHET FHET FHET
Financial asset at fair value A EETAEBERN
through profit or loss A
Derivatives fTETAR - - 206 206
Fair value measurement using: Total
BATRBEAENAAEE: #Et
Description 1t Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE F2E E3E 20124
FHET FET FET FET
Financial asset at fair value 27 BEF ABEH
through profit or loss BEE
Derivatives PTETER - - 1,469 1,469
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(9) Fair values (Continued) (9) 2AREHEH)
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on REFIBRALEBETENEEY
level 3: B!
Financial asset at fair value
Description 1 2t through profit or loss
RAREETA
BEMEemEE
Derivatives
fTET A
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
FHERT FHIT
At beginning of year REY] 1,469 -
Acquisition g - 1,716
Total gains or losses recognised RIBm R A B E B EE#H)
in profit or loss (#) (1,263) (247)
At end of year REXR 206 1,469
#) Include gains or losses for assets ~ (#) BIEREHRNFEHEEED
held at end of reporting period (1,263) 1,469
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those RIERERNBBLEEELER
for assets held at end of reporting period are presented in the HREBRNATRHEENRE T4
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. EEHERERES -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FERT FHIT
Asset appraisal services income & EaT AR YA 38,629 26,937
Asset advisory services income EERMRBHBA 25,147 22,736
Corporate services and consultancy income 12 iR7%5 K #& s YR A 32,455 18,663

96,231 68,336
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMWA
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
F#&xT FHT
Exchange gain, net b 5 e - F58 - 2
Bank interest income RITH B A 124 132
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses & 4k 3 2 i 45 953 674
Sub-leasing income o FAEUA 1,470 2,055
2,547 2,863
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. IHWER
The Group has two reportable segments as follows: REEMEREDEBLAT

Asset advisory services and -

asset appraisal

BEBRRY MEEN G -

Corporate services and -

consultancy

IR KA -

Provision of asset appraisal and asset advisory services, including real estate and
fixed asset appraisal, mineral property appraisal, business and intangible asset
valuation, financial instrument and derivative valuation and advisory related to
various types of assets in particular property in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")

RUEETEREEBBRE SREHERE T EET G BWEF(L 25

MEVEERE eRMIAMIAETAGERAFRSREE (LEERRPEA
RARMBE ([HhE )R 8747

Provision of company secretarial services, human resource management and other
administrative services, accounting and tax services, corporate communication
and marketing services, corporate governance, internal control and enterprise risk
management services, management consultancy services

RERAFWERS ANEREEREMITBRY S5t RATRE X8

ARTISHERE  BEER AR CERREIRRSE K E R R ARS

01 REEXRBEERL A
2013 £
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The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technical requirements and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include corporate income and expenses, loss on
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, share of results of
associates and a jointly controlled entity, loss on deemed disposal of
partial interests in an associate and finance lease charges. Segment
assets do not include corporate assets, investments in associates and a
jointly controlled entity, available-for-sale financial asset, financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, pledged bank deposit and amounts
due from related parties. Segment liabilities do not include corporate
liabilities, obligations under finance lease and amounts due to related
parties. Segment non-current assets do not include corporate property,
plant and equipment, investments in associates and a jointly controlled
entity and available-for-sale financial asset.

The Group accounts for intersegment revenue and transfers as if the
revenue or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

(a) Information about reportable segment profit
or loss, assets and liabilities:

REBRIRE D AP RREE L EFEL 12
HAREmMKERS - B0 MBLER R
ARBEBFEZ TRNRMERL R TI5E

D EEEETBUR Eﬁiﬁﬂxiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BR-NRENHERTEEA
B ‘Afﬁﬁﬁ)@aﬁnﬁﬁ@mﬁéﬁﬁiﬁ
B EBE AR R — ARG T
B AAhE—HBERROER L
EEMBEEEXH DHMEETRER
AEE RBERRR—HARZERER
WRE AHLESREE BRAREE
SRABRNEREE SEMRTERR
EUREESTFR - DEABETEEARAE
B BEMREAENENBETFRIE D
HMIERBDEETNBRARYME  FHE MR
B RBZERR R —RAREHERNER
BURAIRHESREE-

AEEZENMELD MRS REZEA
BR NS E = H RS ek g E

(a) FEAME 7 EWENHEIE
EERARENES:

Asset Corporate
advisory services
services and and
asset appraisal consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREBRY ¥R
REEFHE & st
TER THER TER
Year ended 31 March 2013 #Z2013F3A31A L&
Revenue from external REINRE P Y
customers 63,776 32,455 96,231
Intersegment revenue o B e 2,492 8,652 11,144
Segment profit =iyl 29,351 18,163 47,514
Interest revenue A B zs 2 - 2
Depreciation e 235 224 459
Staff costs BTIA 14,008 7,963 21,971
Income tax expense FTiSHiA S 1,804 2,050 3,854
Additions to segment NEDBIERDEE
non-current assets 92 190 282
As at 31 March 2013 ®2013F3H31H
Segment assets DEBEE 51,722 36,264 87,986
Segment liabilities DEEE 12,650 3,149 15,799




For the year ended 31 March 2013

B B2013F3A31HILFE
(a) Information about reportable segment profit (a) EREARET B EREHE -
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued) EEREEBENER: (1)
Asset Corporate
advisory services
services and and
asset appraisal consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B ERBMRYE 1 ERB
RBEFE SEE Mt
FHET FHET FHT
Year ended 31 March 2012 & Z2012F3A31ALLEE
Revenue from external REIREF Wz
customers 49,673 18,663 68,336
Intersegment revenue o EB U a - 8,244 8,244
Segment profit =iyl 25,436 11,744 37,180
Interest revenue B M= 1 122 123
Depreciation e 224 182 406
Staff costs BIRA 11,347 4,334 15,681
Income tax expense FTS B 2,243 499 2,742
Additions to segment NEDHIERBDEE
non-current assets 626 232 858
As at 31 March 2012 ®201263H31A8
Segment assets DHEE 36,570 26,056 62,626
Segment liabilities HEERE 7,256 1,115 8,371




For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 22013F3H31H IFFZ

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET FHET
Revenue (V&
Total revenue of reportable segments & 7 2 Uz 48 28 107,375 76,580
Elimination of intersegment revenue 75 B [ W 2 3 8 (11,144) (8,244)
Consolidated revenue ra s 96,231 68,336
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FTHET FAET
Profit or loss A &R
Total profit of reportable segments s o B F B EE 47,514 37,180
Elimination of intersegment profits 7 B [ i ) 8 (11,144) (8,244)
Unallocated amounts ROBEEFE
Share of results of associates and DIEBE R B R
a jointly controlled entity —FHEEEH B ER (239) 1,146
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEL & —HHE AR i
partial interests in an associate &8 - (1,051)
Loss on financial asset at fair value BRAREBEFGT ABEL
through profit or loss CREEER (1,263) (247)
Finance lease charges BMERES N (15) (11
Corporate expenses NAAX (7,924) (18,450)
Consolidated profit for the year FELERE N 26,929 10,323
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) DU BRI E
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FTHET FET
Segment assets THEE
Total assets of reportable segments WENHEERE 87,986 62,626
Unallocated amounts: ROBLER:
Corporate assets NEBE 20,551 20,540
Available-for-sale financial asset AHfHESREE 2,241 =
Investments in associates and N A /NCTD
a jointly controlled entity — M FEEHEERNIRE 23,588 23,714
Financial asset at fair value through BERARBEGTABRH
profit or loss BREE 206 1,469
Pledged bank deposit ERFRITER 1,014 1,004
Amounts due from related parties JiE W e 38 75 R IR 1,370 382
Consolidated total assets LEBERLE 136,956 109,735
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013F 20124
FET FHET
Segment liabilities DEEE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ~ TR& D 2 B E4A%E 15,799 8,371
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLEFE:
Corporate liabilities NEIBE 1,775 4,465
Obligations under finance leases MEREET 329 486
Amount due to a director JEN—RBEZFIE 375 -
Consolidated total liabilities maBEARE 18,278 13,322
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 201245
FExT FHT
Interest revenue F S W 22
Total interest revenue of reportable WwMEDEHF BB
segment 2 123
Unallocated amounts AN ek}
Corporate interest revenue A EF) B E 122 9
Consolidated interest revenue AR B 124 132
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FET FHET
Depreciation e
Total depreciation of reportable WEDEITERRE
segments 459 406
Unallocated amounts RO eEE
Depreciation of corporate assets NEIBENE 182 115
Consolidated depreciation rETTE 641 521
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
FERT FHIT
Staff costs B I
Total staff costs of reportable segments & 7 #F B T AN 4258 21,971 15,681
Unallocated amounts KoL es
Corporate staff costs NARIB IR 11,761 17,646
Consolidated staff costs LEBIKRA 33,732 33,327
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(9]

(b) &2 B RS

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENEHIER:
(Continued) (&)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FHET T
Additions to non-current assets REFRRBEE
Total additions to non-current assets of #FRED EREBEIE R BN A E A E
reportable segments 282 858
Unallocated amounts RO E
Acquisition of an associate and U bs — B & A Al &
a jointly controlled entity —HEEEG T 281 24,301
Acquisition of available-for-sale WEAHEEemEE
financial asset 2,241 -
Additions to corporate RERAIERBEE
non-current assets - 646
Consolidated additions to RARNBIERBDEE
non-current assets 2,804 25,805
Geographical information: (c) HHEER:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET T
Revenue Y 3=
Hong Kong B 34,724 19,508
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE) 56,926 35,451
Others Hh 4,581 13,377
Consolidated total AR 96,231 68,336
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FERT FHT
Non-current assets REBEE
Hong Kong BE 24,999 25,690
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE) 2,280 234
Others HAb 239 =
Consolidated total RB 1A EE 27,518 25,924
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BFE2013F3A31 1L F&
(c) Geographical information: (Continued) (c) HEEHR:
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on TE2 5408 B R - WS AR P FTE
the locations of the customers. B AR A
(d) Revenue from major customers: d REFEEFHWE:
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account for HAREBEWZI0%I A EHEER
over 10 percent or more of the Group's revenue is as follows: FPRzEDFTAT :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
FET FHT
Asset advisory services and EEBBREREEFML
asset appraisal
Customer a EPa 16,195 14,727
Customer b =Fb N/ATE A 7,380
Corporate services and consultancy 1% R & 5450
Customer ¢ = =le 16,632 N/AAT 3 FR
Customer d ZFd N/ATE 8,850
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
FERT FHIT

Finance lease charges BMEMES B 15 11
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2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
2013F 20124
FExT FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVEARR I8 — BB RS
Provision for the year FEEE 3,649 2,742
Under-provision in prior years BAFETEREE 205 =
3,854 2,742
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2012: ANEERIEEHZ2013F38318 ILFE
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 B 5 FE SR B s A 0 $216.5% (20124 ¢
March 2013. 16.5% ) B9 KT R BB MG BB -
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the H b 3b 77 P& ER T i A @O B T8 2 HH TR &
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, B EMERRE RN E  RIEE MR
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect E - ZEREAGE
thereof.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product 4575 A <2 BRBR B B s A SR A BB RS 5
of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as MEMEROERAT :
follows:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
FEx FHIT
Profit before tax B 35 A A 30,783 13,065
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREFEBB =X 16.5% 16.5%
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REABNSH R ETEANTIE 5,079 2,156
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEARMMARN TG 2 (2,547) (1,855)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A] 0% f 2 M9 Bt 755 5 28 348 1,095
Tax effect of temporary differences not THAEREZENNGZE
recognised 33 19
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised TR RB AR BBENRETZE 861 2,037
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not PHRABEARBRRBEENTHTE
previously recognised - (443)
(Under)/over-provision in current year RNEEZ (TREE) BEiE (48) 20
Under-provision in prior years BEFETERE 205 =
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries Hf/& A A& R ARG 2 (77) (287)

Income tax expense FriS i 2 3,854 2,742
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

M. FERF
REBMEEHFENG (FA)UATE

following: HEHSIAT :
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FERT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A B < 580 500
Allowance for trade receivables (note 20) B 5 W skTa s (M5E20) 851 493
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables % 5 FE MR BB 57 B (Ff3E20)
(note 20) (149) (255)
Allowance for amount due from JE i — Fl L [R)42  B BE RRIE B
a jointly controlled entity 1,099 -
Depreciation e 641 521
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) BEEEHM (H:E12@)) 4,361 5,791
Exchange loss/(gain), net B 18, () F58 142 )
Fair value loss on an financial asset at BARBEFAERNEREED
fair value through profit or loss N EEEE 1,263 247
Loss on disposals of property, HEWHE HERZEEE
plant and equipment 162 -
Operating lease charges CERESH
Land and buildings T RAEF 5,630 4,763
Photocopier machines ENH 53 37
5,683 4,800
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B T 7 (B 5= B 5 E)
Salaries, bonus and allowances e JEAL KERL 32,614 29,595
Share-based payments LARR 17 73 B0 &9 15 5% 373 3,296
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAE A EI LR 745 436
33,732 33,327

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
Annual Report 2013

100
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(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESFHM
The emoluments of each of the Company’s director were as RARZEZEFHMNAT :
follows:
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
and benefits scheme based Discretionary
Name of director Fees inkind contributions  payments bonus Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2HR RIER MR
BEspg e BNAE SRS AERNAR WA a3
FHL FHL FHL FHL FEL FEL
Year ended 822013538318
31 March 2013 LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong EBNEE - 2,995 15 - - 3,010
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RRREE
(retired on (201248 A3H
3 August 2012) RIE) - 853 3 - - 856
Independent non- BUHRTEE
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BG R BEAE
Yan, Peter 180 - - 7 - 187
Mr. Wan Kam To FRERE 144 - - 7 - 151
Mr. Wu Chi Keung HEREE 150 - - 7 - 157
Total st 474 3,848 18 21 - 4,361
Year ended 22012638318
31 March 2012 LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong EENEE - 2,602 12 - 439 3,053
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RRESRE - 2,206 12 - 68 2,286
Independent non- BUHRTEE
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BfFRBLE
Yan, Peter 157 - - 13 - 170
Mr. Wan Kam To FHRELE 125 - - 13 - 138
Mr. Wu Chi Keung R LS 131 - - 13 = 144
Total st 413 4,808 24 39 507 5,791

B EXCFTIREREHN AN AR
B RAE EME KR B E T
B2 HE

Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.
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(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

(9]

The five highest paid individuals in the Group included 1 directors
(2012: 2 directors) for the year ended 31 March 2013. Details

of those emoluments have been disclosed above. Details of the

emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals for the year

are set out below:

(b) EEEBEFH AL HHMH

HE2013F3A31BLEE A&
EnhEsagATBEIEES
QQ0N2F 28 EFE) - FBAFBFIE
REXEE - RAFE RIS
ATEFBFBEERIIAT -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124
F#&xT FHT
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 5,043 1,351
Discretionary bonus BIBIEAT - 2,646
Share-based payments VAR 19 3 BB 89 7 3k 119 1,478
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE T ET B
contributions 58 24
5,220 5,499
The emoluments fell within the following bands: J&8 70 TS 71 46 (] ) i
Number of individuals
A
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FHERT FHT
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000% 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

2,500,001;8 7T %£3,000,0007% 7T

No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors

or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the

year.

(c) WAFE AEEVEAEMESSK

R AL SEB - AVERBE I
B2 35 N BB A 5% (8 1 1) 22 B =l BB 47

i3

o

{

T
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The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of
HK$1,000 (starting from 1 June 2012: HK$1,250) per employee and

vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

REBIZBEARGIERE ST EEG A

ERAEREBRERIATHELTES
T8l ([aEestEl]) - AEEERESS
&R T E5% BB AL - T
A LR %5 % & 81,0007 7t (2012
F6ATHIE : 1,250/8 L) RABES T
ZIEH MR HRBHEBES -

AEERPEXINHBERRAERESR
A0 T3 TR & I e o ORI & 5B
B -ZEMBRRAREREARFERT
AETAD AP RRARSEEEL
B AN A BRIRAR R » 4 75 1 BUT A
HAEZEMBARMARE R BRRK
EEMRKEMNEE - ZEWB LR
REAREFBINE—BERREZEIE

TR K

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

20135 20124

FET FHET

Interim (note a) RER (FfREa) - 30,000
Proposed final of HK 0.5 cent (2012: HK1 cent) &%k B & A% T A%0.58 1L

per ordinary share (note b) (20124 - 1784L) (Fd5Eb) 2,500 5,000

2,500 35,000

Note:

(@) Before the Group Reorganisation, interim dividends of HK$8,500,000
per ordinary share of Asset-Plus Global Limited, totalling
approximately HK$17,000,000, were declared and distributed to
its then shareholder for the year. Interim dividends of HK$8.125
per ordinary share of Greater China Appraisal Limited, totalling
approximately HK$13,000,000 was declared and distributed to its
then shareholder for the year.

(b)  On 25 June 2012, the Company's Board of Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2012.
The dividend was paid on 10 August 2012. On 28 June 2013, the
Company's Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of HKO.5 cent
per share for the year ended 31 March 2013. This proposed dividend
is not reflected as dividend payable in these financial statements.

B & :

(@) MEBEEMHEA - F A - Asset-Plus Global
Limited & ik & 1% & i@ % 8,500,000/5 7T
P HIR BB IR R 9K T HE R
A 5T #917,000,0007 7T ° F A + EZE T
BEERABEIRERE MRS 1255 7T
B AR B R IR T EERRE - A5
#713,000,00058 7T °

(b) T20129F6 258 ARBIEFSREZ
IREBEHE20129F3A31 B L FERKRE
IR EEBR1AEN - Z AR E B 1201248
B108 {20136 A288 * AR
REEEREREEZE2013F3H31H
LE4FFEHY R BARY B & %0578 11l - 1t 32
FRBWARZENHERE R AE
AR B °
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Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$26,929,000 (2012: HK$10,323,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 500,037,589 (2012:

479,508,197) in issue during the year, and is calculated as follows:

BREXER

BHZE2013F3A31HILFENARFESR
ABEGRERBRNTDBREBEFAHAL
AIYER AE(G 4R & 1 £926,929,00078 7T
(20124F : 10,323,000/ 7T ) M F RE 71T
L 38 % 0 ¥ £9 87500,037,589% (2012
479,508 1970 )5t & St EMT -

2013 2012

20135 2012

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of year RENNEBRTEBR 500,000,000 1

Effect of shares issued on Group Reorganisation REBEERZTORMOTE - 999

Effect of capitalisation issue upon listing REMRBEMMEETHT R - 374,999,000

Effect on shares issued under placing REREETHRNNOTE - 104,508,197

Effect of exercise of share options TEERENZE 37,589 -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR R 0 5B A I T 19 88

at end of year 500,037,589 479,508,197

Diluted earnings per share BREEEF

The Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary sharing for

the year ended 31 March 2013.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the calculation of diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$10,323,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 480,040,584, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 479,508,197 in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation plus the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 532,387 assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of the share options outstanding

during the reporting period.

AABREZE2013F3A31H ILFE AL
EABEEELE

BZE2012F3A31BILFE AR RHEE
AFEAE GRS BRI TR B F N AR A
B AEEHF 410,323,000/ 70 K & B A%
h#E F 15 8 5480,040,5840% (A& AR &t
EERENRBF 2 FREBITL R NE
F 19 80479,508,197 B AIARVET (R M &
N i AR AT B AR T R AR AT R BT

BT 2 BRI TS 80R532,3870% ) &t

e
H o
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B FE2013F3 31 HIFF/ZF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 5% -MERRKRE

Group
N1
Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HENEEE BRERE BAERE RE @t
THT FTET TR THT THET
Cost B
At 1 April 2011 B2011%F4A1R 778 340 1,722 - 2,840
Additions nE 434 69 354 647 1,504
Exchange difference ERER 3 - - - 3
At 31 March 2012 and R2012%3A318 %

1 April 2012 201294A18 1,215 409 2,076 647 4,347
Additions hE 83 93 106 - 282
Disposals HE (203) = = = (203)
At 31 March 2013 #2013%F3A31H 1,095 502 2,182 647 4,426
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 April 2011 R2011E4818 416 223 977 - 1,616
Charge for the year FENE 110 32 285 94 521
At 31 March 2012 and #2012%83A318 Kk

1 April 2012 201244818 526 255 1,262 94 2,137
Charge for the year FENE 156 47 276 162 641
Disposals HE 41 = = - @)
At 31 March 2013 #2013%3A31H 641 302 1,538 256 2,737
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2013 ®2013%F3A31H 454 200 644 391 1,689
At 31 March 2012 ®2012%3A31H 689 154 814 553 2,210

At 31 March 2013 the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by the

Group under finance leases amounted to approximately HK$391,000

(2012: HK$553,000).

105

(20124 : 553,000/ 7T ) °

M2013F3A318 - AEBRRMEMREIR
TR A E MR EEL A391,0007 7T

REEXRBEERA A

2013 £
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
Bl F2013F3H31HILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AT ERE

Company
ENNE|
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124F
FERT FHET

FLEMERE  BAA - -

Unlisted investments, at cost

FEWL,/ FEATHT B A R FR R EIRIF - 28

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013 are as follows:

R2013F3A83 1B BARFFIBMT :

Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
Name of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
R, ElhEERES
WEARERE Rt/ B BRTRABREER RER/HMERNEAL EEEHR
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Directly held:
EERE:
New Valiant Limited B.VI. 4 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 July 2010 US$1 each
EBRAES AREREE REZR
201057 A288 1ETHEBR
Fidelia Investments B.VI. 4 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited 12 November 2010 US$1 each
HBRLHS AR EREE REZKR
2010114128 1R ERR
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
Greater China Hong Kong 1,600,000 ordinary shares of ~ 100% 100%  Provision of asset appraisal
Appraisal Limited 20 August 1997 HK$1 each services
EETEERAA N 1,600,0008% & i {E RAE BT RS
199748 A20H TATEE AR
Best Aim Consultant Ltd. B.VI. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
2 February 2010 US$1 each consultancy services
EBRUES 1REREE RECEFARY
201042A2A8 1RTHERR
Asset-Plus Global Limited B.VI. 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of asset advisory
23 July 1997 US$1 each services and corporate
consultancy services
EBRAES 2REREE REEERMBRE R
1997474238 1ETHEBR rEHRARE
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B 220139F3H31H1F FE
Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
Name of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
R, ElhEARES
WEARERE R,/ B BRTRABRER RER/HMERNEAL EEEHR
2013 2012
2013%F 20125
Greater China Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
Corporate Consultancy & 15 November 2004 HK$1 each services and consultancy
Services Limited
EECERBEAERADA B 2R BREE R R R A
2004117158 Revtik=gilie
GCA Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
20 August 2004 HK$1 each
EERE (BR)ERAA BB 1,600,0008% 5 AR E & REER
2004484208 TETHERR
Linkson Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Sub-leasing of office
(note (a)) 3 December 1999 HK$1 each
EREERRAA (Hit@) &S 2REREE PHRBAE
199912 A3H 1T EAR
Hanhua Zhenli Zi Ben The PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
Zi Xun (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 23 February 2010 HK$2,000,000 services
(note (b))
EEFVEARER HE AR REFARS
#A(ER)BERAH 201062A23R 2,000,000 ¢
(b))
Creative Market B.VI. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited 22 July 2011 US$1 each
EREAHS REREE REZR
2011%7R228 1R EBR
Greater China Asset Services Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Provision of asset advisory
Limited 26 October 2011 HK$1 each and appraisal services,
BEBERBARRA corporate consultancy
services and property
agency services
Bk REREE REEERR AR
20114107268 BTAERR EERHARE R
MERERY
Notes: Bt 5
(@) Linkson Investment Limited was acquired by GC Associates Limited, (@) GC Associates Limited* BIMZEZEZ R

BEEBR AR (—KAZERREZE
B2 F)) R201042 A238 W E 5%
BEERAR - EE IR E R ZIZERARE

formerly known as GCA Professional Services Group Limited, a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, on 23 February
2010. It first came under the control of the Controlling Shareholder

since then. ) o
(b)  English names for identification purpose. (b) ZERXEBBIEZRRR-

FPMBEEREFBHEREBMERL EE
KBEBENHBARMNERE-

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HILFE
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINTLY  18. A= A 7 K& — [E X [ 2 4l
CONTROLLED ENTITY BERNRERE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
201345 20124
FE&xT T
Investments in associates: REEE AR RRE -
Unlisted investments EEMIRE
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 4,449 4,575
Goodwill [GES 19,139 19,139
23,588 23,714
Impairment losses WEEE - =
23,588 23,714
Investment in a jointly controlled entity: R—EHEREGEEARE :
Unlisted investment EEMIRE
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - -
23,588 23,714
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B 22013F3A31H IFFZ
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINTLY  18. ABf & 1 5] & — [ 3L [ 42 i
CONTROLLED ENTITY (CONTINUED) BEENKRE ®
Details of the Group's associates at 31 March 2013 are as follows: M2013F3 A3 1B RSB M EE AR FE
LUNE
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EEREEES
ML RERE/
£18 T ERTRBRESR MEENEIL  EBEH
TodayIR Holdings Limited BVI 1,569 ordinary shares of 19.12%"  Investment holding
US$1 each
RERRHS 1,5690% G AR HE (B REER
1R ERR
REEEHEEER PRC Registered capital of 50% Inactive
BRRRA* US$60,000
3 711 & 260,000 7T TEax
Greater China London Limited  United Kingdom 112,500 ordinary shares of 20% Inactive
GBP1 each
e 112,5000% & A/ (& EEzx
15887 EER
*  The business licence has been suspended since 18 July 2008. * BEHIRE2008F7A18HEH IE -
#  The Group holds warrant which entitles the Group to subscribe 150 fAREREE TASERBEE QR
new ordinary shares in the associate. After the exercise of the warrant, 15008 ¥ L BAR A R EE - NITE
the Group would share 26.18% ownership interest in the associate. RREZE AEB KD EBE Q)
26.18%¥E A M 25 ©
109 BEEXRBERA T

2013 £
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
Bl F2013F3H31HILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINTLY  18.

CONTROLLED ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates

REE QTR — B REZEF
B

RE @)

& M

BREEEBUBRRABRE AEEB LD

according to their management financial statements is set out below: AN IS AR EH ST
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FHET FHT
Total assets BERE 29,485 49,223
Total liabilities BfEHE (7,085) (26,113)
Net assets EEFE 22,400 23,110
Group's share of associates’ REESHHEENRNEE
net assets FE 4,449 4,165
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET FHT
Total revenue W 4R %8 37,242 11,347
Total loss for the year FER BB (1,242) (855)
Other post-acquisition change in net assets HEMiigEk o EEFEE - 6,927
(1,242) 6,072
Group's share of associates’ (loss)/profit and AEBEDHEERRFE
post-acquisition change in net assets for (E18) R ER 2
the year BEFHRE (239) 1,146

On 29 February 2012, TodayIR Holdings Limited acquired a 51%
equity interest in another company at the consideration of 70 shares
and HK$2,910,000. The issue of new shares resulted in loss on
deemed disposal of partial interests in an associate of approximately
HK$1,051,000.
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1201242 H29H ' TodayIR Holdings
Limited A70R% A% 13 £.2,910,0007% 7T 2 X
BUEE S IN—FI D RLZ51 % ARHE - BE1THT
R BEUREL & — M & A RIS o
2 E5 18 491,051,0007 7T

/|
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
Bl 2201393 /31 HIFFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Details of the jointly controlled entity at 31 March 2013 are as follows:

18. RE QR A R — B EEH

ERNKRE @

MR2013F3A318 L ERIEFIFEHF
ICECIE

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
EEERERRERE
=% SRR R i B BRITRBERE /PERNEIL EEEH
Asia Pacific International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 50% Investment holding
Professional Managers HK$1 each
Management Centre Limited
TEABRBESEA BB 2R EBREE REER
ERHLARAT BTz ERR

The following amounts are the Group's share of the jointly controlled

entity that is accounted for by the equity method of accounting.

AT R AREE R Z A RZEG TR
BERSEARNSHE-

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FERT FHT
At 31 March M3HA31H

Current assets MENE B 110 =
Non-current assets EMBEE 178 -
Current liabilities mENEE (2,469) =
Non-current liabilities B =L - =
Net liabilities BEFE (2,181) =

Year ended 31 March HE3ABIEFE
Turnover B - =
Expenses 53 2,199 =

The Group has not recognised its share of losses for the year amounting

to approximately HK$1,099,000 (2012: Nil) for the jointly controlled

entity. The accumulated losses not recognised were approximately

HK$1,099,000 as at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).
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AEBMARZ LR TG ERERELE
16 4 £ 518 491,099,000/ JT (20124
#) - R2013F3A318  KER R ERE
#7731,099,0007% 7T (20124F : &) ©

2013 £
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HZE2013F3H31HIFF/ZF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 19. A tLESHEE
Group
KEE

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

201345 20124

F# FT

Unlisted equity securities, at costs FEEMZRAES KA 2,241 =

20.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

During the year, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary,
entered into a series of contractual arrangements to purchase 30%
equity interests in a private entity incorporated in the PRC, an appraisal
company which provides appraisal services in the PRC, at a total
consideration of RMB1,800,000. The acquisition was completed in
January 2013. Because the Group has no voting right on the governing
bodies of this entity, the Group is not able to exercise the significant

influence on the financial and operating policy decisions of this entity.

The unlisted equity investments are measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because they do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group'’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During
the year, the credit terms generally range from 7 to 30 days. However,
according to past history, revenue from asset advisory and corporate
consultancy services would have a longer collection period of over 180
days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.
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20.

FRN AEBBEBR—ME2EHNB AR
NRINAHNRHENBRERBARE
1,800,0007T & B — Al 54 A B 5 it B 37 32
R TSR R FEE Q Rl 230% MR HE - 3%
Y B B 7201351 A Ak o R AN B R
REBIRRWBIERRE WAEE
EEHRER M REERRITEEX

X
FEN-

RIEIR - I LT ZBRARE THIZRAR
BBERE RESKRER EREMES LI
EMSHREAERAABEBEENSEFE-

B % BWHKE

AEBREZFPNRZGREEREES
X -RER - FEH-RNF7EE308T
SR REBEREEEL EEBME K
EHARBEEEERIB0H 2 BE KM
Hi o AR BB 3 1) R UK (O] 8 W SRR A 15
EBRER-EETHENARER-
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ELZE2013F3A31HIFFE
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 20. B 5 BIWFIA (5)
The Group's aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date, REFEEEZABNE S EUGRIE (F0BR
and net of allowance, is as follows: B RERMTIT
Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET FAT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 30,932 28,012
31 to 90 days 31%90H 3,992 3,611
91 to 180 days 912180H 15,708 6,365
181 to 365 days 181£365H 13,788 1,350
Over 365 days iBim365H 14,739 69
79,159 39,407

The Group's aging analysis of trade receivable from asset advisory  ALEREEEBEBRCEZARTHESE
and corporate consultancy services, based on invoice date, and net of — YGFRIEE N B ZE A 2 (W HIBR B E) HERER 5

allowance, is as follows: M
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124F
FERT T
0 to 30 days 0Z=30H 23,188 21,794
31 to 90 days 31290H — _
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 12,893 5,590
181 to 365 days 181%365H 13,176 630
Over 365 days #18365H 14,415 =
63,672 28,014
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B Z20139F3 31 H1F FE
As at 31 March 2013, an allowance was made for estimated M2013F3A318  AEBE AT
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$2,256,000 (2012: W Bl # B 5 FE Y5k IE £92,256,0007 7T
HK$1,554,000). (20124 : 1,554,0007% 7T ) 1 H B4 -
Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables for the year is set out RERNE FEWFIBEEH LR 0
below: I
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124F
F#&xT FHT
Balance at the beginning of the year FAEER 1,554 1,316
Allowance for the year FERE 851 493
Reversal upon settlement for the year F G4 E 1% D5 (149) (255)
Balance at the end of the year FREH 2,256 1,554
As at 31 March 2013, trade receivables of approximately HK$49,735,000 M2013F3H31H B 5 EKKIELD
(2012: HK$27,950,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to 49,735,000/ 7T (20124 : 27,950,000/
a number of independent customers to whom there is no past history of 7C) B EIHMERIR(E - ZF HIBEE TR
default and normally have a much longer collection period of over 180 AW EHRLERBEGRIS0A ZRK
days. An aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: WEIBE IR E R 258 5 BN
ERRER DT :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET FHT
Up to 3 months (A A 6,617 20,639
3 to 6 months 3E6(E A 14,672 6,602
6 months to 1 year FEENE:S 13,808 640
Over 1 year A —F 14,638 69

49,735 27,950
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B 22013F3A31H IFFZ
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 20. E 5 FEW A (&)
The Group's aging analysis of trade receivable from asset advisory and REBRAEEBRREEZARBOE
corporate consultancy services which were past due but not impaired, B AME KR ENE 5 R IB R BRE S AT
is as follows: Pl
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FET FAT
Up to 3 months 3E AR - 14,415
3 to 6 months 3%61E A 12,893 6,220
6 months to 1 year 6fE A =14 13,176 =
Over 1 year HBIB1F 14,415 =
40,484 20,635
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are denominated RNEEE S EWFIEREE U T &%
in the following currencies: 1B:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013F 20124
FExT FHIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 27,536 22,660
Renminbi AR 48,529 16,747
United State dollars = 3,094 =
Total Bt 79,159 39,407
175 BEHERKERA R
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Bt 220133831 H IFFE
21. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21. RAREBEEFTAERNESH
PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group
EE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET T
Derivative, at fair value PETIER - BRAREE
Unlisted JEET 206 1,469
The carrying amount of the above financial asset is classified as follows: MEMEENEmMEY BN :
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FExT FHIT
Held for trading BIEEE 206 1,469

The investment represents investment in warrant of an associate,
TodayIR Holdings Limited, acquired at a consideration of HK$1 and

such warrant enables the Group to exercise an option to subscribe
for 150 further ordinary shares in the associate, at an exercise price of

HK$87,000 per share. The associate and the warrant were acquired
simultaneously, and the warrant will expire on 16 August 2013.

The Group established fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

possible on entity-specific inputs. Major inputs into the model are as

BRAREBENBTHORERBENEZE D
Al TodayIR Holdings Limiteds? A& # 78 A %

B AR EER

BEARERITEES

hmow%ﬁw@%k%%ﬁ WRE

2B N BB 150/% I iR A% o 52 B A N A
KR AR AE TR R R M LA B - i SR AR FB S O
201348 H 168 JEim °

AEBEFERGEEIEEAAEE  ZIGHE
EERARERBITRBRESRES T KR
EEER  WRSIRA TS BIR R &AL
A R RB AR M B E B8 T E BV BB AT S

follow: B AZBEAZEEZHHBROT:
2013 2012
20134 20124
Underlying share price RN B HK$74,602 HK$84,476
74,6027 7T 84,4767 7T
Interest rate Al = 0.0730% 0.1782%
Volatility ] 28.80% 31.58%
Dividend yield i B s = 5.69% 3.71%
Time to maturity EI HA R 0.4 yearsF 1.4 yearstE

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
Annual Report 2013

116



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 e AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 March 2013

ELZE2013F3A31HIFFE
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 22. B EAE K FIE
Group
rEE
2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124F
B FEx FAT
Due from an associate JRE Wy — FH B i R B 3B (a) & (b) - 382
Due from a jointly controlled entity &4z — 5 L[R2 $] B E B () 1,370 =
1,370 382
(@) The amounts due from an associate and a jointly controlled entity (@) MEUW—MEERE K —H LR
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. ERENIBAERR 28 REETEE
SRER
(b) The amount due from an associate represents dividend income (b) FEUL— FEIESE & A B) B FRIE 48 e U iR
receivable. BUEA -
23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK AND 23.EEHRITERRRITRE
CASH BALANCES T AEER
The Company's pledged bank deposit represented deposits pledged to AN IS R T 28PN A A BIMEE
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Company as set out in HRITFRIER ARG ERRITEER
note 28 to the financial statements. The deposits are denominated in HEMRITERNFR - ZFFFTABT
Hong Kong dollars and arranged at fixed interest rate of 0.65% (2012: FTE - WH2013F3 431 B IRE E F | &
1.3%) per annum as at 31 March 2013 and therefore expose the Group 0.65[E (20124 : 1.3E )t B A&
to fair value interest rate risk. mAREARNBENERE-
7 BEHERKERA R

2013 F 3R
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ELZE2013F3A31HIFFE
23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK AND 23. EERRITERREBITRER
CASH BALANCES (CONTINUED) TEEER ()
The cash and cash equivalents are as follows: RERREZEWHT
Group Company
rEE N
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2013% 20124 2013% 20124
FTERT FTHT FTET FHT
Cash on hand FHERE 384 387 - =
Cash at bank RITRE 19,074 36,686 11,052 6,063
Cash and cash equivalents RizEHERERNEER
in the consolidated statement of REeEED
cash flows 19,458 37,073 11,052 6,063
The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following RERREZEWMUATINEEE:
currencies:
Group Company
Py AR
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124 2013% 20124
FEx FHT FEx FHAT
Australian dollars RITT 1 1 - =
Renminbi AR 1,121 948 - -
United States dollars e 1 261 - =
Hong Kong dollars BT 18,325 35,863 11,052 6,063
19,458 37,073 11,052 6,063
Conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject to the AR H AR INE S BB SNE B i {5151
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of N AEHE - EIE KA EEIRRER

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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Bl 2201393 /31 HIFFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

24. B 5 IR RRE

AEEEZREMNFRORESTIT

Group
TEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FHT FAT
0 to 90 days 0z290H 5,082 1,645
91 to 180 days 912180H - 327
5,082 1,972

The Group's trade payables are denominated in the following

AEBE S ENFIAATIIEEE:

currencies:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013%F 20124F
THET FET
Hong Kong dollars BT 5,082 1,752
Renminbi AR - 220
5,082 1,972

25. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.
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25. B{d—REERE

BN —R2ESNRASEERR RERIZ

e
FERER

REEXRBEERA A

2013 F 3R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
Bl F2013F3H31HILFE

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

26. MEHESE

Group
FEE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEHEERE BEEERENRE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2013F 20125 2013% 20124
TERT FET FET FHET
Within one year —&R 172 158 162 144
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF
(BEERMF) 172 359 167 342
344 517 329 486
Less: Future finance charges B R IREE X (15) (31) N/ATER NATEMR
Present value of lease obligations HEAERNRE 329 486 329 486

Less: Amount due for settlement within & : + =18 B A &I IE
12 months (shown under current (GlERBEE)
liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months + = {8 B & X 1+ 2 18

It is the Group's policy to lease out certain motor vehicles under finance
lease. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At the end
of each lease term, the Group has the options to purchase the motor
vehicle at nominal prices. The average lease term is 4 years. At 31
March 2013, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.1% (2012:
3.1%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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167 342

AREEMERARERSLAETRE
BT f & DA RE 8 5k RT3 S AR AT
MRAESMHRIELLTH - R EHEH
R AEEMERANEEBEEERE-F
B E M AMF - M20136F3A318  F
HEBREERAE3.1% (20126 :31%) °
HRFIRTREHBRET MAEEA
AEQARBEFERRR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 220139F3H31H1F FE

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of temporary differences is immaterial to

the Group.

At 31 March 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$15,570,000 (2012: HK$10,820,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately

HK$4,288,000 (2012: HK$3,373,000) that will expire as follows:

MREREERNRBZEHAKREMS
BB RS ER A E AR ET
HEHR A

ANE@P201343 A31 B Al K 85 R 0%
&y 7R Eh FA 7 18 &5 48 49 4515,570,000%8
7L (20124 : 10,820,000/ 7T ) ° 487 K 3k
Dl = 0 R A =02 R G
MEEEERETCHRBEE KAEIH
BEBEFREFRNUATFERERNER
#94,288,000% 7T (20124 : 3,373,000/

JT)
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124F
THET TET
Year 2017 20174 3,373 3,373
Year 2018 20184 915 =
4,288 3,373

Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in subsidiaries

and associate are insignificant.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had banking facilities in respect of bank
overdraft and Corporate credit card of approximately HK$2,000,000
and HK$300,000 respectively (2012: bank overdraft of HK$2,000,000).
The Group's banking facilities were secured by the pledged bank
deposit of approximately HK$1,014,000 (2012: HK$1,004,000) of the
Group.

Ho At 758 78 5 48 P PR A A ES o

M2013F3A31A - AKEBEFHERITE
XREBRORITEERED AN A
2,000,000%300,000/ 7T (20124 : iR
1T X {5 552,000,000/ 70) ° AN E
METEEBEENCERRITERD
1,014,0007% 7t (20124 : 1,004,000/ 7T)
e -
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B FE2013F3A31 H1L F &
Number of
shares Amount
HK$
BB & B &8
& IT
Authorised: Z
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R EE.01E T (20124 -
(2012: HK$0.01) each 0.0 L) W E Bk
At 1 April 2011 R2011F4H18 (@) 38,000,000 380,000
Increased on 18 May 2011 2011458181 1 (b)(i) 1,962,000,000 19,620,000
At 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 M2012%3A318 -
and 31 March 2013 20124 818 &
20133 H31H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SRR E0.018 7T (20124 ¢
(2012: HK$0.01) each 0.01787T) B EEAX
At 1 April 2011 201144818 (@) 1 -
Issue of shares as consideration LR 2 ER AR A T BT
for the transfer of entire RERHD
shareholding (b)(ii) 999 10
Issue of shares by way of LA 1 4 (B BR B AL Y
capitalisation of share premium ARBITRG
account (b)(iii) 374,999,000 3,749,990
Issue of shares by way of placing LABE & 7 BT D () 125,000,000 1,250,000
At 31 March 2012 and M201293A318 &
1 April 2012 2012F4H1H 500,000,000 5,000,000
Issue of shares on exercise of TR RITRG
option (d) 40,000 400
At 31 March 2013 #2013F3A31H 500,040,000 5,000,400
Note: Bt 5
(@) The Company was incorporated on 3 December 2010 with an (@ ARAAIR2010F12A38 F ML &
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 TE % 7K £3380,0007% 7T 9 74%38,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, one share was allotted R SIREE0.01E TG, - RE B -
and issued as fully paid to the initial subscriber and transferred IR R N B R BEITIRB R IR
to Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company controlled by the AR il o N Y F/NEE]

Controlling Shareholder. Brilliant One Holdings Limited °
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Note: (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on
18 May 2011:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of an additional
1,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each;

999 shares of HK$0.01 each was issued on 18 May 2011 in
exchange for the entire shareholdings of Fidelia Investments
Limited and New Valiant Limited, pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation; and

a total of 374,999,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued as fully paid at par to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on the register of
members of the Company on 17 May 2011 conditional on
fulfilment of the conditions as stated in the paragraph headed
“Conditions of the Placing” in the section headed “Structure
and conditions of the Placing” in the Prospectus and subject to
the share premium account of the Company being credited as a

result of new shares issued by way of placing on 31 May 2011.

On 31 May 2011, 125,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
at a price of HK$0.72 by way of placing, before related expenses of

HK$90,000,000. The excess over the par value of the shares issued

was credited to the share premium account.

During the year, 40,000 (2012: Nil) ordinary shares were issued at

HK$0.2 per share as a result of the exercise of share options of the

Company.

Fiat: (&)

(b)

BN —A N 201145 A 18 @8

EHEREE:

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

7B R EE SN 1,962,000,0004%
FREEC.OIE THRMD AR
B] )% FE IR 2N 3380,000/% 7T 1%
HNZ20,000,00078 7T :

RIEEBEEH  R2011F5818
H 817999/ & X [ {80.0178 7T
/3% 15 LAHR EXFidelia Investments
Limited 2 New Valiant Limited#) &
HORRAE : &

FHRREREESFENRERER
it ] — & [BCE SIEMIEM] —
ER Pl M (R K 18 R PA2011
F5A31A AR E 5 A BT
FEARARGD & ERNGER
% #54 $£374,999,0000% & K% E
{H0.017% 7T B9 40 & AR 19 Bir 3% Je 3%
TF20114ESH17H & £ 4
REFE 5 AR R AR R & A A%
Ho

2011458318 » 125,000,0000% &
AR TE{E0.01/8 TR BR 15 LA BE & 75 = 1%
0.728 TR ER BT - R AT
FfT 15 5738 /90,000,000 7T © #8 ) 2 2%
TRMHEENBO ARKRD SER-

FR AARBIZBREETE:
40,000 (20124 - E) R E BRI LT
B0 278 TR T o
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The Group manages its capital to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to maximise the return to its shareholders, to protect the interests
of its shareholders, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to be able to service its debts when they are due. In order
to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment, obtain various forms of debt/
equity financing available in the market at an appropriate cost when

necessary.

Management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. As a
part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing

debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group is
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float

of at least 25% of the shares.

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

AEBEAERERENER  BEBRRRK
B K B 3R - R (2 E R B0 85 BEAR A
SEAHELEURTNER D R EER
RERSBNEEEER  BERZEDE
BERES AEBAERABRNRES
B REARERUNAERAETSRES
BRANER,RAEE -

EEERFENEAER -EHERHE
BEBERNKANERE RN ER L
REBAEBIR N BLE « BITHAUA K 2
THEBRERRAER FHEELBEE
AR -

AEBNEBRBNAFERTTE -

R ER B 15 EL A B X P T M L Y e —
SMNERRBIBEARNERG  AEBEARFED

25% M0 RARIFAE

(a) =X&EH
AEEMNRFHRESTER &)
PHBERNGERFZEHRAZ
Zl| o
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(b) Company (b) &2 T
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share payment retained
premium reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LRHABER (R:tER)/
B4R 1E MRS REZF st
FHT FHT FHT FHET
At 1 April 2011 R2011F4A818 - - O] M
Share issued under the capitalisation 1R & AN (b 817847 2 13
issue (3,750) - - (3,750)
Share issued pursuant to placing RIBARLEZ1T 2R G 88,750 - - 88,750
Share placing expenses BB ER X (13,532) = = (13,532)
Recognition of share-based payments # R AR 7 A5 2 31 = 3,296 = 3,296
Transfer of share-based payments ~ #E:EHEETEE 2
relating to the share reward to &5 B8 2 LABR (D 7
employees EfE 2[5 - (2,956) 2,956 =
Profit for the year FEwEA - - 2,183 2,183
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 %2012438318 &
20124 A 1H 71,468 340 5,138 76,946
Share issued exercise of TR B RERBITRG
share option 10 (2) - 8
Recognition of share-based PARR 7 A BB i 15 SURE R
payments - 373 — 373
Forfeiture of share BIE R H 2 B
option granted - (42) 42 -
Profit for the year REE T - - 6,060 6,060
2012 final dividend 20125 REIR S = = (5,000) (5,000)
At 31 March 2013 M20134%3HA31H 71,478 669 6,240 78,387

(9]

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Foreign currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations as well as the effective
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising from
hedges of the net investment in these foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note 3(f)(iii) to the financial statements.

() FEMEERE®

@)

S W B 52 i i

BEE 55, (58 5 B 4 MR S5 N R BE s B
BHREREENMBINEEZR
VAR $T5h Z FINB 51 A F
HEANEMIINEZRNER
oo EEIRBI B ®RE
B EE3(F) (i) P ek & 5T B R BRI o



For the year ended 31 March 2013
B 220139F3 31 H1F FE

(c) REMHEREN (&
i) BEAXHH

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the original
investment costs in the Greater China Appraisal Limited
and GCA Holdings Limited incurred by the Group, (ii) the
non-controlling interests in the retained profits of Greater
China Appraisal Limited and GCA Holdings Limited acquired
by GCA Professional Services Group Limited upon a group
reorganisation in 2010, and (iii) the difference of the cost
of 999 ordinary shares issued in exchange for the entire
shareholdings of Fedelia Investments Limited and New
Valiant Limited and the nominal value of issued and paid
up shares of the subsidiaries existed immediately before the

Group Reorganisation.

(iii) Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

(iv) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents (i) the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 3(p) to the financial
statements and (ji) the fair value of 16,425,000 shares of the
Company placed down by Brilliant One Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company, to reward
certain members of the senior management team of the

Company on 9 January 2012.

AEENEARFEEOHAEER
REEFEER A A REE
S8 (ZER)ERATEER
RIGERA  (I)VEEFERK
EEEBERAAN2010FEH
BHZRWNEZETEBRAT
REZESE (ZER)ERADF
YR B8 g M) ) FE 428 1Rl 1 A A
K (iii)EE 17999 & 3 AR LA 3R ER
Fedelia Investments Limited &
New Valiant Limited 2 2 2P A% ##
B AR R EE RS AR TR
HM B A RB BT RERRG
EEZHERE-

(iii) JR 1 it 1R

(iv)

REMSHEESRENE AR A
Metnim ERPE SRR T
N AR - HE TR BE B B IR AX
S RME KRRABRENE
NEEEBBRERIHENZ
(Evsk

LAR 7 2 FEBEN 1 5Kk i
VAR 17 7% EE 5 9 5 SR A 5 (1)
RIE B2 IR BB S 3R R M 5
3(p)PTEL B R 2 At B AR 15 &
EWON RS AERERE T
AEBEREEZERAMEAR
THERREHENRAEE:
RNARBMEZER A A
Brilliant One Holdings Limited
% $516,425,0000% B {5 ) 2 72
B LAR2012F1 A9R £ E
ARARETEREEREE KK

o

o
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Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time employees, officers, directors of the Company and
the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme was adopted by a resolution
of the Company on 18 May 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years commencing from the

adoption date as defied in the scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted at any time under the Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Group shall not exceed such number of shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval
of the Scheme. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. Unless
approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any

12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

Each grant of options to any of the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the option (if any)). Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent non-
executive director, or any of their respective associates, would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and

including the date of such grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the

shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options must be approved by shareholders of the

Company.

RS E R RER S

RARIRMBERETE ([FT81]) B
HASEEEEL NG AR HEES
FTHEERER -FE2EER2EERRE
AR RARAEIMBARINERES 17
BABRES FHEIM2011F5H 188 £
RNAR—TRFERAME - RBRIEASBITEE
SHBIBETE SN - & AIiG B 5T &I AT M
WA BRET IS B0 AN

T T B PRV AR 48 5 81 7T BE % 1 /0 B A A
BERREASEE R R bERET
SRR LM BEREMMS RIRDEE
B NMSHRBRENRETEE B RRE
ERTRA10% M EE - Ef#E -
R B I IR K B IR AN R AR BUS
BRI TR EE - BRIFAR A B R AL
> BRIFMERN2{E A BE A& AR AR
HEERE (BREETERERITENE
Pt ) 1T RIS B 31T Ml T B ITH AR
BB TNEHEBEEEITRMNII% °

BRARARBAEMNES TETHABRRK
ITERRAWEZENEMHEALRH
BRI ARBYIFNTES (TREE
& RBREZZARA (NF) B
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B2 BT R T EITRRRD
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by each grantee. An option may be exercised at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but
in any event no later than 10 years from the date of grant but subject

to the early termination of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date

of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote

at shareholders’” meetings.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

EREENERESTE (8

REREZBEETREEEBE218
NER MEBERABAXNEKIETZ
SFEARE-BEEUIREFTSHERS K
BALR 2R B AR R E & 35 R HAR
MBERFTTE - HEER A NMSER KL A
HIEE AT 105 - MERT &I TR PR L -

BRENTTEERESRETE BRALR
UNT=FBz&EeE: ((BRERLER
AR B R AT U T (B ¢ R (i) B 3
BHE B AERS B AR BRGNS
FTRI U (B R (AR RIR G R

BHEAZEE-

R A T B A5 A AMCRELE SR X
RREERFZZHERN-

ERIERI B 2 R BT

Number of
share options
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
HK$
) ) R AT 4
£ 4 A 5 T TEE YT
BT
Option A1 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 200,000
BIREAT 201241 A6H B201245H188 2021457 17H 0.207& 7T
Option A2 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 200,000
BRxrEA2 201241 A6H B20124F5 4180 22021458171 0.20% 7T
Option A3 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 200,000
HERRHEA3 201241 56H H20129F5818H =20214F5H17H 0.207% 7T
Option B1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 1,190,000

HE AR B 201241 86H 5201241 A30H £2021F5A17H 0.208 7T
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

Exercise period

Exercise price

EoEENERESTE (8

Number of
share options
outstanding

HK$ _
_ _ el R AT
REBH THEH TEE BRERE
BT
Option B2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 1,230,000
B tEB2 201241 A6H B2013F1 18 E2021F5817H 0.20% 7T
Option B3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 1,230,000
B EBR3 201241 H6H B2014F1 18 &E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option C1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 900,000
fBAHEC 201241 A68 B201241H308 2021458 17H 0.20% 7T
Option C2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 900,000
BEC2 201241 A6H B2013F1 18 E2021F5817H 0.20% 7T
Option D1 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
FEAR D 201241 H6H B20129F7 1B &E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option D2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
HBAX D2 201241 A68 B2013F1 18 E20214658178 0.20% 7T
Option D3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 110,000
B ED3 201241 A6H B2014F1 18 E2021F5817H 0.20% 7T
Option E1 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 80,000
FE AR IEET 201241 H6H B2013F1 18 E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option E2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 80,000
HBARIEE2 201241 A6H B2014F1 18 E2021458178 0.20% 7T
Option E3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 80,000
B HEE3 201241 A6H B2015F1 18 £2021F5817H 0.20% 7T
Option F 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 240,000
i IR HEF 201241 H6H B20129F7 1B E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option G 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 60,000
BAEG 201241 A6H B2013F1 18 E20214658178 0.20% 7T
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

Exercise period

Exercise price

EoEENERESTE (8

Number of
share options
outstanding

HK$ _

_ 5 i RATE

FH A 1THEH TEE BREHR
BT

Option H 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 330,000
BB AR #EH 201241 86H B20124F1A308 £2021F5817H 0.20/8 7T

Option 11 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 150,000
FERR RN 201241 56H B2013F1 1B 2021658171 0.2078 7T

Option 12 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 150,000
FE AR 12 201241 86H B2014F1 818 22021658171 0.208 7T

Option I3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 150,000
HE AR 13 201241 86H B2015%F1 818 22021658171 0.20/8 7T

Option J1 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
FERR RN 201241 56H B2013F7A 1B 2021658171 0.2078 7T

Option J2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
BB RES2 201241 86H B2014F1 1B 22021658171 0.208 7T

Option J3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 7 May 2021 HK$0.20 300,000
fE AR )3 201241 86H B2015F1A1HE20214587H 0.20/8 7T

8,600,000

i 8 B HE B R B A RE R0 AR AR A
REEATE  RIBREETR - 8 B N
FESR B B A BER AN SR [ - RUBB AR A 08
Y o

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the
date of grant, the options expire. Options are forfeited if the employee

leaves the Group before the options vest.
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

EREENERESSE (8
R RITEEZ BRRIE Y BT -

2013 2012

2013F 20125
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options  exercise price  share options  exercise price
HKS HKS
mEF e
BRERE TRE  BREHE fT1E(8E
BT BT

Outstanding at the beginning of REHARITEE

the year 9,730,000 0.2 - -
Granted during the year REAE WL - 0.2 9,850,000 0.20
Forfeited during the year RERZ U (1,090,000) 0.2  (120,000) 0.20
Exercised during the year RERTITE (40,000) 0.2 = =
Outstanding at the end of the year RERBARITEE 8,600,000 0.2 9,730,000 0.20
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAIITE 5,900,000 0.2 2,970,000 0.20

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$0.20. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 8 years (2012: 9 years) and the exercise price is
HK$0.20 (2012: HK$0.20). Options were granted on 6 January 2012.
The estimated fair value of the options on that date is approximately

HK$912,000.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The inputs into the model are as follows:

Weighted average share price INREFHRE
Weighted average exercise price nEFHITEE
Expected volatility T8 2R 1R
Expected life TR HR A R HA

Risk free rate #2531 Bz

Expected dividend yield FEHARR B Uk 5 =R

RERNBATHE 2 BIRENTTE B E 2N
T3 RR (B A0.2008 7T o IR F R M R 1T
(ERE AR 2 I F I R 8r & 4 IR B8
F (201245 : 95F) R AT B /0.20/% 7T
(20124 : 0.20% 7T )  FEARAE THFY20124F
TA6A KN - MR A H 2 5T
fE{E#)4912,000%8 7T °

AV

%L R AEETIRMA T e — & B AT i
EEEAAE -WAZERAZEENT

HK$0.196/& 7T
HK$0.207 7T
58.74%

9.37 yearsfF
1.49%
2.398%
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility
of share prices of comparable companies with shares listed on the
Stock Exchange and engaged in the similar business of the Group.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group's best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value of the options will be amortised over the vesting period
and expensed in the profit or loss.

Other equity-settled share-based payments

On 9 January 2012, the immediate holding company, Brillion One
Holdings Limited, placed down 16,425,000 shares of the Company
to reward certain members of the senior management team of the
Company. The Company has recognised the share-based payment at
the bid price of the grant date of HK$0.18 per share.

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, investment in available-for-sale financial asset of
approximately HK$375,000 was paid by a director.

During the year, no interim dividend payable paid (2012: HK$30,000,000)
by certain subsidiaries was set off against the amount due from an
intermediate holding company.

No additions to property, plant and equipment during the year (2012:
HK$647,000) were financed by finance leases.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the associate TodayIR Holdings
Limited has declared interim dividend. The Group is entitled an amount
of approximately HK$682,000, of which only HK$300,000 has been
settled during the year ended 31 March 2012. The remaining amount
of approximately HK$382,000 is included in amounts due from a
related party as at 31 March 2012, and was settled together with the
interim dividend declared during the year.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

EREENBRESE (8

TEER R TOAR R A D B SX B BT B =
AEBBRUEB 2 ATELB AR ZREZ
RS R I MaT B TE - AR E A 2 B
BRHERBEEEBRTAIER TER
HIRITREBZFE 2 REMELH

b
=
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7201241 B9R * B RR A FBrillion
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FR-AEHEIENSREEZRED
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As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2012: Nil).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

R2013F3A318  AEBEWEL[EKR
EAHEYE (20124F - 4) o

M2013F3A31H  AE B R A BUH &
EHETHEMN AR REEREFIAREN

follows: s
Group
*%m
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20135 20124
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 7,082 3,455
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEFAF(REEEMTF) 10,890 1,045
17,972 4,500

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its offices and photocopier machines. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years and rentals are fixed over the

lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

At 31 March 2013 the total future minimum lease receivable under

non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

REMEFREAKEREETHAE

FHEENHES - KRR EE N HY
NF—E2RFAE HeREHRNEET
B U TEEKAEE-

M2013F3A31H R RELEHE
THEWRRREREFIBERELNT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124
FHET T
Within one year —F R 1,537 1,630
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEFENF (BEEEMTF) 2,690 =
4,227 1,630

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the Group
for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of
three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include

contingent rentals.

REMEFREASEREETHAE
RS KHEREENFEOEAR=
FHeNERARNBENE X AEIEX
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In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed B B 765 S 7 L A 3t 75 88 R ) A T A2
elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, the Group had the 5 RAEERIN - REERF N EREEET A N
following transactions with its related parties during the year: TR5:

Name of directors and related parties having

beneficial interest in the transaction 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000

RREHEEERERNESREABKIES 20134 20124
FERT FHTT

Corporate services and consultancy
income from related companies
KB RER R R ERSE R
AU A

— Greater China Capital Limited ~ Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 264 616
—REBERFRAA EREAXFEERE ZBREL ()
— Greater China Investment Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and
Advisory & Management Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)
Limited 19 =

—EEREEBIEMERAR EBERERFEZREL ()

— Greater China Investment Fund  Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and

Limited Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 30 -
TR SR R 2 98 5 A (a)
— SL Resources Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 28 -
—HRHERBRA A B SR R 2 98 5 A (a)
— TodayIR (Hong Kong) Limited TodayIR Holdings Limited (b) 36 333
- SEMERBAER DA

Subcontracting charges, referral fee
and commission paid to related
parties

ENEERSEE ENERAE

— Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (included  Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong

in directors’ emoluments) 33 7
—EEREE EEDLEE

(Bt AZEHZHM)
— TodayIR (Hong Kong) Limited ~ TodayIR Holdings Limited (b) 85 -

- SEMEIRBAERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

ELZ2013F3A31HIFFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 36. BERRZ (#)
Name of directors and related parties having
beneficial interest in the transaction 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
RSP ECEZRCNESREBR ISR 20135 20124
FET FHT
Rental expenses paid to
related parties
EfEERHEMAXT
— Greater China Lihe Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and
(Shanghai) Equity Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a)
Investment Management
Limited (c) 339 -
—REFR (B REKREE EBEREERTEZHIETE ()
BHRAA]
(@ Mr. Wong Chi Keung is a non-controlling shareholder having (@ BrRLERYHASEEEEATLE
significant influence to the Group. 778 FEAE AR AR R
(b) TodaylR Holdings Limited is an associate of the Group. (b) TodaylR Holdings Limited 7 & & &)
NI
(c)  English names for identification purpose. (0 ZEAXZBEEZHPBER-
The key management personnel compensation paid by the Group is REEENEEZEEEAENMESRIE
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. AR FE124 55 -
37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. REHESH
On 28 June 2013, the Company proposed to declare a final dividend of M2013F6A28H » AN A Al &% M H AR &
HKO.5 cent (2012: HK1 cent) per ordinary share to its shareholders, as R R BB AR T B AR0.575 1L (2012
further detailed in note 14 to the financial statements. F B - E— LR ER T B mERM
14 -
38. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. #t/E I B3R
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the P HIREREMN20136F6 A28 EF St
Board of Directors on 28 June 2013. R R
125 BEHERKERA R

2013 £



A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out below.

AEE RN BE T AN R 28 R A E AR
SEBERIIMT -

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MALEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124 20114 20104 20094
FHRT FHET FHET FHET FHET
RESULTS 4+
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND ZIN/NEIE ZEDN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FEAE FE 5w
THE COMPANY 26,929 10,323 25,427 26,727 2,799
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20134 20124 20114 20104 20094
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BB E 136,956 109,735 52,899 43,165 14,482
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (18,278)  (13,322) (16,558)  (17,866) (5,542)
118,678 96,413 36,341 25,299 8,940
Note: The summary of the combined results of the Group for each of the two — Hfit: AEERE Z2009F X2010F3431H 1F

years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 and of the assets and liabilities as
of 31 March 2009 and 2010 have been extracted from the Company’s
listing prospectus dated 25 May 2011. Such summary was prepared as
if the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout
these financial years and is presented on the basis as set out in note 3(b)
to the audited consolidated financial statements. The audited results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the audited assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2013 are those set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
Statements.

B F B 5 FHIE GF R A BEZE LA K KR2009
FR2010F3 /31 HAIEER B BE F 7
BN T BB 52011465258 89 F 7
JREFE o S BFZ B 50 40 7 5 (B 3 b (9 32
BREEZZHBFEREAN—EFERE
W IZAE B AR B B TR 2 I i 3(b) AT # A
HEZ Fl - K& BRE E2013F3H31H
I FRERIAC T AR R EER2013F3
H31HEjAE R B ER B E B RAEEE
A BE#HRE -

W_EBE I T AT Ay & A

—&85 e



GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

= FEF H X IR B AR L 3

www.gca.com.hk

Room 2703, 27" Floor, Shui On Centre
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